
Date Published: 26 February 2019     

Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Tuesday 5 March 2019 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence Chair

2  Declarations of Interest 

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda.

Chair

3  Minutes of the previous meeting 

To follow

Chair

SCRUTINY ITEMS

4  NHS Long Term Plan 

https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/nhs-long-
term-plan.pdf - January 2019 

Slides to follow

Mary Hutton

5  Quarter 3 Public Health Performance Report (Pages 1 - 6) Sarah Scott

6  One Gloucestershire ICS Lead Report (Pages 7 - 24) Mary Hutton

7  Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group Performance Report 
(Pages 25 - 58)

Mary Hutton

8  Quarter 3 Adult Social Care Performance Report (Pages 59 - 64) Margaret Willcox 
OBE

https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/nhs-long-term-plan.pdf
https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/nhs-long-term-plan.pdf


    

INFORMATION ITEMS

9  Director of Adult Social Services Report (Pages 65 - 68) Margaret Willcox 
OBE

10  Director of Public Health Report (Pages 69 - 74) Sarah Scott

11  GCCG Clinical Chair/Accountable Officer Report (Pages 75 - 92) Mary Hutton

Membership – Cllr Iain Dobie, Cllr Terry Hale, Cllr Stephen Hirst, Cllr Carole Allaway Martin 
(Chairman), Cllr Brian Oosthuysen, Cllr Nigel Robbins OBE, Cllr Pam Tracey MBE, 
Cllr Robert Vines and Cllr Suzanne Williams

Co-opted Members - Cllr Stephen Andrews (Cotswold District Council), Cllr Janet Day 
(Tewkesbury Borough Council), Cllr Collette Finnegan (Gloucester City Council), 
Cllr Martin Horwood (Cheltenham Borough Council), Cllr Steve Lydon (Stroud District Council) and 
Cllr Helen Molyneux (Forest of Dean District Council)

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Please declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or 
personal interests that you may have relating to specific matters which may be discussed 
at this meeting, by signing the form that will be available in the Council Chamber.  
Completing this list is acceptable as a declaration, but does not, of course, prevent 
members from declaring an interest orally in relation to individual agenda items.  The list 
will be available for public inspection.

Members requiring advice or clarification about whether to make a declaration of interest 
are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer (Jane Burns Tel: 01452 328472 /fax: 01452 
425149 e-mail: jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Democratic Services on :01452 324204 or email: 
stephen.bace@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

(c) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Please note that substitution arrangements are in place for Scrutiny (see p106 of the 

Constitution).
2. Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 

permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 324204) to make the necessary 
arrangements ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not 
wish to be photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on 
duty at the meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point. Please remain there and await further 
instructions.

mailto:jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:stephen.bace@gloucestershire.gov.uk


Public Health HOSC

Quarter Three 2018/19

Produced by the Performance and Improvement Team

Key to symbols

Performance better than tolerance

Performance within tolerance

Performance worse than tolerance

No information

Missing target

No value

Bigger is better A bigger value for this measure is good

Smaller is
better

A smaller value for this measure is good

Reporting Basis

Year to
Date

Performance accumulated over the
year

Rolling Year Average performance over a 12
month period

Annual Performance measured once a year

Latest
Quarter

Performance this quarter

Snapshot Performance at a particular point in
time

Reported In

JHWS Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy

HOSC Health & Care Overview & Scrutiny

CYPP Children & Young People’s Plan

ASMT Adult Social Care Management Team

CDS Core Data Set

1

P
age 1

A
genda Item

 5



Number of Healthy
Lifestyles customers
demonstrating a significant
improvement in their
mental wellbeing score

Bigger is
Better

226 197 131 81 87

The numbers seeing a significant improvement in their mental wellbeing score in Q3 is
similar to Q2   87 (52%) in Q3 compared to 81 (47%) in Q2.

N.B  this is a subset of those people receiving support from the service as not everyone
agrees for their wellbeing to be measured

Improving mental wellbeing is not a primary function of the service. However, we included
this as an indicator to monitor what, if any, impact a lifestyle change intervention by the
service may have on mental wellbeing. 

There are a number of things that impact on someone's mental wellbeing so it is difficult
to disaggregate the impact that the service can have from external influences. However,
we track this indicator to gain more insight on the wider impact the service can have
outwith its primary function.

However the data show that 123 (74.1%) of those accessing the service to improve lifestyle
behaviour also see an improvement in their mental health.
87/166 (52.4%) saw a significant improvement
36 (21.7%) showed some improvement
28 (16.9%) remaining the same.
15 (9.0%) got worse

% of Healthy Lifestyles
customers demonstrating a
significant improvement in
their mental wellbeing
score

Bigger is
Better

77.0 % 69.0 % 62.0 % 47.0 % 52.0 % See comment above.

% of all Healthy Lifestyles
customers who achieve a
significant risk factor
improvement

Bigger is
Better

69.0 % 83.0 % 73.0 % 76.0 % 72.0 %

High numbers of service users continue to make behaviour changes that will impact on
their health with 769 / 1072 (72%) of users achieving a significant improvement. Service
users are contacted within 2 days, see the same coach throughout their programme and
coaches are trained in motivational interviewing and see people at a place that is
convenient to them.   

Of the 303 that did not meet the threshold for significant improvement 189 (17.6%) made
some improvement in achieving their behaviour change goal. 

Therefore in total 958 (89.3%) made some improvement in their behaviour change goal.

Percentage of people
eligible for an NHS Health
Check who have received
one

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

64.6 % 61.2 % 66.6 % 37.8 % ? ?

Unfortunately, Q3 performance data for NHS Health Checks has been
delayed. This is due to the introduction of a new clinical audit tool for
primary care which has caused issues with extracting the data from GP
providers. The Q3 data will be entered when the issues are resolved. Q2
uptake levels appear to show a fall which is out of line with the previous
trend in the county. This may be relate to the data quality issues caused
by the new extraction tool. Data will be checked for accuracy and revised
if necessary. Should uptake in Q3 remain  below expected levels, further
work will be undertaken with GP providers to understand what might be
causing any fall.

% of children who received
a 1 year check by 1 year

Bigger is
Better

79.0 % 78.6 % 78.1 % 82.1 % 83.7 %

This indicator is broken down under indicators PH97i, PH97ii and PH97iii to show health
visitors' effectiveness with more vulnerable children and families. This narrative supports
the data for all three indicators.
Q2 demonstrates an improvement in the percentage of more vulnerable children seen
within timeframe from Q1. In Q2 85.5% of UP children were seen within timeframe up
from 67.5% in Q1 and in Q2 85.2% UPP children were seen within timeframe up from
75.8% in Q1.
For Q2 from 1,735 eligible children 89% received this mandated check but some were out
of timeframe. The service aims to review all children by age 912months but the review
continues to be a valid assessment of development up to aged 15 months.
The remaining 11% equates to 190 children who did not receive the 12 month check. This
190 consisted of 3 UP and 3 UPP children who show as not receiving a 912m check. 1
child was a child in care who received the check 2 weeks too early and therefore shows as
not seen for 912m (as per Child in Care policy this child has their ASQ completed every 6
months). 2 children had moved out of area and therefore were not seen and 3 DNA'd their
appointments. These children have had their appointment rebooked as per protocol for UP
and UPP children.  The remaining 184 were Universal children, 112 children DNA'd their
first appointments and have appointments coming up within the 15 month timeframe. 12
children had moved out of area and therefore were not seen, 19 declined and 41 DNA'd
their 2 appointment.
The Q3 lag data when reported will confirm the percentage of these 12 month reviews
that have been completed within the 15 months timescale for this current Q2 cohort of
children.

% of infants being
breastfed at 68 weeks
(breastfeeding prevalence)

Bigger is
Better

Rolling Year 49.2 % 53.0 % 51.6 % 53.6 % 54.3 %

Q2 18/19 rate of 54.3%  continues the improvement trend from 17/18 but remains below
the local aim of 58%.  GCC continues to commission a revised Breastfeeding Peer
Support service targeting areas with lower rates of uptake and increased numbers of
younger mums than the Gloucestershire average. BFPS offer support in the more deprived
wards of Gloucester, Cheltenham and the Forest of Dean.  Further initiatives contributing
to increasing Breastfeeding rates are facilitated by the Gloucestershire Infant Feeding
Strategic partnership led by GCC.

% live births that receive a
face to face New Birth Visit
within 714 days by a
health visitor

Bigger is
Better

93.3 % 87.8 % 87.6 % 88.8 % 89.4 %

The data for PH96 is also broken down by level of need indicators Universal (U), Universal
Plus (UP) and Universal Partnership Plus (UPP) these are nationally recognised offers in
Health Visiting. And demonstrate health visitors' effectiveness with more vulnerable
children and families. This narrative supports the data for all three indicators.
For Q2 from 1,608 eligible babies 99.7% received this mandated check but some were
outside of the 714 day time frame. The remaining 0.3% equates to 5 children not being
seen within a 30 day time frame. Of these five, 3 are UPP families and these children are
Children in Care who were placed at the time out of county. These children have since
been seen by Gloucestershire Health Visiting on return to the county. The remaining 2
were Universal families, one moved out of county at birth and one declined the HV
service.

% of live births to universal
families that receive a face
to face New Birth Visit
within 7 14 days by a
Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

93.8 % 88.5 % 88.1 % 90.5 % 91.2 %

% of live births to universal
plus families that receive a
face to face New Birth Visit
within 7 14 days by a
Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

89.6 % 85.3 % 84.4 % 71.6 % 71.6 %

% live births to universal
partnership plus families
that receive a face to face
New Birth Visit within 7 14
days by a Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

89.0 % 78.1 % 81.0 % 71.7 % 72.5 %

% of eligible children in Reception who participate in
the National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 96.0 % 98.0 % 96.7 % 95.0 %

% of eligible children in Year 6 who participate in the
National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 93.6 % 97.5 % 97.0 % 95.0 %

Rate of new STI diagnosis in sexual health services
(excluding under 25 Chlamydia)

Smaller is
Better

? ? 514.0 600.0

**Updated data is not available this qtr.** The indicator is updated
annually. Data shown is annual data for 2017 and is the latest data
available. The rate of new STI diagnoses in the county is significantly
below the national average. A high diagnosis rate can be indicative of a
high burden of infection.

Number of adults receiving
alcohol brief interventions

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 798 1,256 389 853 795 250

Proportion of all Opiate
Users in treatment, who
successfully completed
treatment and did not
represent within 6 months
of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

7.7 % 5.6 % 4.6 % 4.1 % 4.6 % 4.6 %

Proportion of all Non
Opiate Users in treatment,
who successfully
completed treatment and
did not represent within 6
months of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

35.6 31.0 22.8 21.0 27.2 22.8

Effective engagement rate
of Opiate Users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

93.0 % 95.0 % 94.3 % 95.5 % 95.5 % 85.0 %

Effective engagement rate
of NonOpiate users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

78.0 % 75.0 % 75.7 % 76.3 % 76.3 % 55.0 %

Proportion of adult alcohol
misusers who have left
treatment successfully

Bigger is
Better

41.3 % 34.7 % 29.3 % 27.7 % 32.6 % 29.5 %

Percentage of clients
waiting under 3 weeks for
drug treatment intervention

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

99.6 % 99.3 % 98.5 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 90.0 %

Percentage of clients
waiting under 3 weeks for
alcohol treatment
intervention

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

100.0 % 99.2 % 97.8 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 90.0 %

Healthy Lifestyles  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

Healthy Lifestyles  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

NHS Health Checks  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18
Target Dec
18

Comments Dec18

Children's Public Health  Quarterly Trend Analysis No Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Children's Public Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target  Calendar Year
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Dec16 Dec17 Dec18
Target Dec
18

Comments Dec18

Sexual Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Dec16 Dec17 Dec18
Target Dec
18

Comments Dec18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18
Target Dec
18

Comments Dec18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18
Target Sep
18

Comments Sep18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18
Target Sep
18

Comments Sep18

2

P
age 2

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col9')


Number of Healthy
Lifestyles customers
demonstrating a significant
improvement in their
mental wellbeing score

Bigger is
Better

226 197 131 81 87

The numbers seeing a significant improvement in their mental wellbeing score in Q3 is
similar to Q2   87 (52%) in Q3 compared to 81 (47%) in Q2.

N.B  this is a subset of those people receiving support from the service as not everyone
agrees for their wellbeing to be measured

Improving mental wellbeing is not a primary function of the service. However, we included
this as an indicator to monitor what, if any, impact a lifestyle change intervention by the
service may have on mental wellbeing. 

There are a number of things that impact on someone's mental wellbeing so it is difficult
to disaggregate the impact that the service can have from external influences. However,
we track this indicator to gain more insight on the wider impact the service can have
outwith its primary function.

However the data show that 123 (74.1%) of those accessing the service to improve lifestyle
behaviour also see an improvement in their mental health.
87/166 (52.4%) saw a significant improvement
36 (21.7%) showed some improvement
28 (16.9%) remaining the same.
15 (9.0%) got worse

% of Healthy Lifestyles
customers demonstrating a
significant improvement in
their mental wellbeing
score

Bigger is
Better

77.0 % 69.0 % 62.0 % 47.0 % 52.0 % See comment above.

% of all Healthy Lifestyles
customers who achieve a
significant risk factor
improvement

Bigger is
Better

69.0 % 83.0 % 73.0 % 76.0 % 72.0 %

High numbers of service users continue to make behaviour changes that will impact on
their health with 769 / 1072 (72%) of users achieving a significant improvement. Service
users are contacted within 2 days, see the same coach throughout their programme and
coaches are trained in motivational interviewing and see people at a place that is
convenient to them.   

Of the 303 that did not meet the threshold for significant improvement 189 (17.6%) made
some improvement in achieving their behaviour change goal. 

Therefore in total 958 (89.3%) made some improvement in their behaviour change goal.

Percentage of people
eligible for an NHS Health
Check who have received
one

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

64.6 % 61.2 % 66.6 % 37.8 % ? ?

Unfortunately, Q3 performance data for NHS Health Checks has been
delayed. This is due to the introduction of a new clinical audit tool for
primary care which has caused issues with extracting the data from GP
providers. The Q3 data will be entered when the issues are resolved. Q2
uptake levels appear to show a fall which is out of line with the previous
trend in the county. This may be relate to the data quality issues caused
by the new extraction tool. Data will be checked for accuracy and revised
if necessary. Should uptake in Q3 remain  below expected levels, further
work will be undertaken with GP providers to understand what might be
causing any fall.

% of children who received
a 1 year check by 1 year

Bigger is
Better

79.0 % 78.6 % 78.1 % 82.1 % 83.7 %

This indicator is broken down under indicators PH97i, PH97ii and PH97iii to show health
visitors' effectiveness with more vulnerable children and families. This narrative supports
the data for all three indicators.
Q2 demonstrates an improvement in the percentage of more vulnerable children seen
within timeframe from Q1. In Q2 85.5% of UP children were seen within timeframe up
from 67.5% in Q1 and in Q2 85.2% UPP children were seen within timeframe up from
75.8% in Q1.
For Q2 from 1,735 eligible children 89% received this mandated check but some were out
of timeframe. The service aims to review all children by age 912months but the review
continues to be a valid assessment of development up to aged 15 months.
The remaining 11% equates to 190 children who did not receive the 12 month check. This
190 consisted of 3 UP and 3 UPP children who show as not receiving a 912m check. 1
child was a child in care who received the check 2 weeks too early and therefore shows as
not seen for 912m (as per Child in Care policy this child has their ASQ completed every 6
months). 2 children had moved out of area and therefore were not seen and 3 DNA'd their
appointments. These children have had their appointment rebooked as per protocol for UP
and UPP children.  The remaining 184 were Universal children, 112 children DNA'd their
first appointments and have appointments coming up within the 15 month timeframe. 12
children had moved out of area and therefore were not seen, 19 declined and 41 DNA'd
their 2 appointment.
The Q3 lag data when reported will confirm the percentage of these 12 month reviews
that have been completed within the 15 months timescale for this current Q2 cohort of
children.

% of infants being
breastfed at 68 weeks
(breastfeeding prevalence)

Bigger is
Better

Rolling Year 49.2 % 53.0 % 51.6 % 53.6 % 54.3 %

Q2 18/19 rate of 54.3%  continues the improvement trend from 17/18 but remains below
the local aim of 58%.  GCC continues to commission a revised Breastfeeding Peer
Support service targeting areas with lower rates of uptake and increased numbers of
younger mums than the Gloucestershire average. BFPS offer support in the more deprived
wards of Gloucester, Cheltenham and the Forest of Dean.  Further initiatives contributing
to increasing Breastfeeding rates are facilitated by the Gloucestershire Infant Feeding
Strategic partnership led by GCC.

% live births that receive a
face to face New Birth Visit
within 714 days by a
health visitor

Bigger is
Better

93.3 % 87.8 % 87.6 % 88.8 % 89.4 %

The data for PH96 is also broken down by level of need indicators Universal (U), Universal
Plus (UP) and Universal Partnership Plus (UPP) these are nationally recognised offers in
Health Visiting. And demonstrate health visitors' effectiveness with more vulnerable
children and families. This narrative supports the data for all three indicators.
For Q2 from 1,608 eligible babies 99.7% received this mandated check but some were
outside of the 714 day time frame. The remaining 0.3% equates to 5 children not being
seen within a 30 day time frame. Of these five, 3 are UPP families and these children are
Children in Care who were placed at the time out of county. These children have since
been seen by Gloucestershire Health Visiting on return to the county. The remaining 2
were Universal families, one moved out of county at birth and one declined the HV
service.

% of live births to universal
families that receive a face
to face New Birth Visit
within 7 14 days by a
Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

93.8 % 88.5 % 88.1 % 90.5 % 91.2 %

% of live births to universal
plus families that receive a
face to face New Birth Visit
within 7 14 days by a
Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

89.6 % 85.3 % 84.4 % 71.6 % 71.6 %

% live births to universal
partnership plus families
that receive a face to face
New Birth Visit within 7 14
days by a Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

89.0 % 78.1 % 81.0 % 71.7 % 72.5 %

% of eligible children in Reception who participate in
the National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 96.0 % 98.0 % 96.7 % 95.0 %

% of eligible children in Year 6 who participate in the
National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 93.6 % 97.5 % 97.0 % 95.0 %

Rate of new STI diagnosis in sexual health services
(excluding under 25 Chlamydia)

Smaller is
Better

? ? 514.0 600.0

**Updated data is not available this qtr.** The indicator is updated
annually. Data shown is annual data for 2017 and is the latest data
available. The rate of new STI diagnoses in the county is significantly
below the national average. A high diagnosis rate can be indicative of a
high burden of infection.

Number of adults receiving
alcohol brief interventions

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 798 1,256 389 853 795 250

Proportion of all Opiate
Users in treatment, who
successfully completed
treatment and did not
represent within 6 months
of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

7.7 % 5.6 % 4.6 % 4.1 % 4.6 % 4.6 %

Proportion of all Non
Opiate Users in treatment,
who successfully
completed treatment and
did not represent within 6
months of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

35.6 31.0 22.8 21.0 27.2 22.8

Effective engagement rate
of Opiate Users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

93.0 % 95.0 % 94.3 % 95.5 % 95.5 % 85.0 %

Effective engagement rate
of NonOpiate users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

78.0 % 75.0 % 75.7 % 76.3 % 76.3 % 55.0 %

Proportion of adult alcohol
misusers who have left
treatment successfully

Bigger is
Better

41.3 % 34.7 % 29.3 % 27.7 % 32.6 % 29.5 %

Percentage of clients
waiting under 3 weeks for
drug treatment intervention

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

99.6 % 99.3 % 98.5 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 90.0 %

Percentage of clients
waiting under 3 weeks for
alcohol treatment
intervention

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

100.0 % 99.2 % 97.8 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 90.0 %

Healthy Lifestyles  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

Healthy Lifestyles  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

NHS Health Checks  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18
Target Dec
18

Comments Dec18

Children's Public Health  Quarterly Trend Analysis No Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Children's Public Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target  Calendar Year
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Dec16 Dec17 Dec18
Target Dec
18

Comments Dec18

Sexual Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Dec16 Dec17 Dec18
Target Dec
18

Comments Dec18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18
Target Dec
18

Comments Dec18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18
Target Sep
18

Comments Sep18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18
Target Sep
18

Comments Sep18

3

P
age 3

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col12')


Children's Public Health  Quarterly Trend Analysis No Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Number of Healthy
Lifestyles customers
demonstrating a significant
improvement in their
mental wellbeing score

Bigger is
Better

226 197 131 81 87

The numbers seeing a significant improvement in their mental wellbeing score in Q3 is
similar to Q2   87 (52%) in Q3 compared to 81 (47%) in Q2.

N.B  this is a subset of those people receiving support from the service as not everyone
agrees for their wellbeing to be measured

Improving mental wellbeing is not a primary function of the service. However, we included
this as an indicator to monitor what, if any, impact a lifestyle change intervention by the
service may have on mental wellbeing. 

There are a number of things that impact on someone's mental wellbeing so it is difficult
to disaggregate the impact that the service can have from external influences. However,
we track this indicator to gain more insight on the wider impact the service can have
outwith its primary function.

However the data show that 123 (74.1%) of those accessing the service to improve lifestyle
behaviour also see an improvement in their mental health.
87/166 (52.4%) saw a significant improvement
36 (21.7%) showed some improvement
28 (16.9%) remaining the same.
15 (9.0%) got worse

% of Healthy Lifestyles
customers demonstrating a
significant improvement in
their mental wellbeing
score

Bigger is
Better

77.0 % 69.0 % 62.0 % 47.0 % 52.0 % See comment above.

% of all Healthy Lifestyles
customers who achieve a
significant risk factor
improvement

Bigger is
Better

69.0 % 83.0 % 73.0 % 76.0 % 72.0 %

High numbers of service users continue to make behaviour changes that will impact on
their health with 769 / 1072 (72%) of users achieving a significant improvement. Service
users are contacted within 2 days, see the same coach throughout their programme and
coaches are trained in motivational interviewing and see people at a place that is
convenient to them.   

Of the 303 that did not meet the threshold for significant improvement 189 (17.6%) made
some improvement in achieving their behaviour change goal. 

Therefore in total 958 (89.3%) made some improvement in their behaviour change goal.

Percentage of people
eligible for an NHS Health
Check who have received
one

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

64.6 % 61.2 % 66.6 % 37.8 % ? ?

Unfortunately, Q3 performance data for NHS Health Checks has been
delayed. This is due to the introduction of a new clinical audit tool for
primary care which has caused issues with extracting the data from GP
providers. The Q3 data will be entered when the issues are resolved. Q2
uptake levels appear to show a fall which is out of line with the previous
trend in the county. This may be relate to the data quality issues caused
by the new extraction tool. Data will be checked for accuracy and revised
if necessary. Should uptake in Q3 remain  below expected levels, further
work will be undertaken with GP providers to understand what might be
causing any fall.

% of children who received
a 1 year check by 1 year

Bigger is
Better

79.0 % 78.6 % 78.1 % 82.1 % 83.7 %

This indicator is broken down under indicators PH97i, PH97ii and PH97iii to show health
visitors' effectiveness with more vulnerable children and families. This narrative supports
the data for all three indicators.
Q2 demonstrates an improvement in the percentage of more vulnerable children seen
within timeframe from Q1. In Q2 85.5% of UP children were seen within timeframe up
from 67.5% in Q1 and in Q2 85.2% UPP children were seen within timeframe up from
75.8% in Q1.
For Q2 from 1,735 eligible children 89% received this mandated check but some were out
of timeframe. The service aims to review all children by age 912months but the review
continues to be a valid assessment of development up to aged 15 months.
The remaining 11% equates to 190 children who did not receive the 12 month check. This
190 consisted of 3 UP and 3 UPP children who show as not receiving a 912m check. 1
child was a child in care who received the check 2 weeks too early and therefore shows as
not seen for 912m (as per Child in Care policy this child has their ASQ completed every 6
months). 2 children had moved out of area and therefore were not seen and 3 DNA'd their
appointments. These children have had their appointment rebooked as per protocol for UP
and UPP children.  The remaining 184 were Universal children, 112 children DNA'd their
first appointments and have appointments coming up within the 15 month timeframe. 12
children had moved out of area and therefore were not seen, 19 declined and 41 DNA'd
their 2 appointment.
The Q3 lag data when reported will confirm the percentage of these 12 month reviews
that have been completed within the 15 months timescale for this current Q2 cohort of
children.

% of infants being
breastfed at 68 weeks
(breastfeeding prevalence)

Bigger is
Better

Rolling Year 49.2 % 53.0 % 51.6 % 53.6 % 54.3 %

Q2 18/19 rate of 54.3%  continues the improvement trend from 17/18 but remains below
the local aim of 58%.  GCC continues to commission a revised Breastfeeding Peer
Support service targeting areas with lower rates of uptake and increased numbers of
younger mums than the Gloucestershire average. BFPS offer support in the more deprived
wards of Gloucester, Cheltenham and the Forest of Dean.  Further initiatives contributing
to increasing Breastfeeding rates are facilitated by the Gloucestershire Infant Feeding
Strategic partnership led by GCC.

% live births that receive a
face to face New Birth Visit
within 714 days by a
health visitor

Bigger is
Better

93.3 % 87.8 % 87.6 % 88.8 % 89.4 %

The data for PH96 is also broken down by level of need indicators Universal (U), Universal
Plus (UP) and Universal Partnership Plus (UPP) these are nationally recognised offers in
Health Visiting. And demonstrate health visitors' effectiveness with more vulnerable
children and families. This narrative supports the data for all three indicators.
For Q2 from 1,608 eligible babies 99.7% received this mandated check but some were
outside of the 714 day time frame. The remaining 0.3% equates to 5 children not being
seen within a 30 day time frame. Of these five, 3 are UPP families and these children are
Children in Care who were placed at the time out of county. These children have since
been seen by Gloucestershire Health Visiting on return to the county. The remaining 2
were Universal families, one moved out of county at birth and one declined the HV
service.

% of live births to universal
families that receive a face
to face New Birth Visit
within 7 14 days by a
Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

93.8 % 88.5 % 88.1 % 90.5 % 91.2 %

% of live births to universal
plus families that receive a
face to face New Birth Visit
within 7 14 days by a
Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

89.6 % 85.3 % 84.4 % 71.6 % 71.6 %

% live births to universal
partnership plus families
that receive a face to face
New Birth Visit within 7 14
days by a Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

89.0 % 78.1 % 81.0 % 71.7 % 72.5 %

% of eligible children in Reception who participate in
the National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 96.0 % 98.0 % 96.7 % 95.0 %

% of eligible children in Year 6 who participate in the
National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 93.6 % 97.5 % 97.0 % 95.0 %

Rate of new STI diagnosis in sexual health services
(excluding under 25 Chlamydia)

Smaller is
Better

? ? 514.0 600.0

**Updated data is not available this qtr.** The indicator is updated
annually. Data shown is annual data for 2017 and is the latest data
available. The rate of new STI diagnoses in the county is significantly
below the national average. A high diagnosis rate can be indicative of a
high burden of infection.

Number of adults receiving
alcohol brief interventions

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 798 1,256 389 853 795 250

Proportion of all Opiate
Users in treatment, who
successfully completed
treatment and did not
represent within 6 months
of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

7.7 % 5.6 % 4.6 % 4.1 % 4.6 % 4.6 %

Proportion of all Non
Opiate Users in treatment,
who successfully
completed treatment and
did not represent within 6
months of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

35.6 31.0 22.8 21.0 27.2 22.8

Effective engagement rate
of Opiate Users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

93.0 % 95.0 % 94.3 % 95.5 % 95.5 % 85.0 %

Effective engagement rate
of NonOpiate users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

78.0 % 75.0 % 75.7 % 76.3 % 76.3 % 55.0 %

Proportion of adult alcohol
misusers who have left
treatment successfully

Bigger is
Better

41.3 % 34.7 % 29.3 % 27.7 % 32.6 % 29.5 %

Percentage of clients
waiting under 3 weeks for
drug treatment intervention

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

99.6 % 99.3 % 98.5 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 90.0 %

Percentage of clients
waiting under 3 weeks for
alcohol treatment
intervention

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

100.0 % 99.2 % 97.8 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 90.0 %

Healthy Lifestyles  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

Healthy Lifestyles  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

NHS Health Checks  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18
Target Dec
18

Comments Dec18

Children's Public Health  Quarterly Trend Analysis No Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Children's Public Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target  Calendar Year
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Dec16 Dec17 Dec18
Target Dec
18

Comments Dec18

Sexual Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Dec16 Dec17 Dec18
Target Dec
18

Comments Dec18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18
Target Dec
18

Comments Dec18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18
Target Sep
18

Comments Sep18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18
Target Sep
18

Comments Sep18

4

P
age 4

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col14')


Number of Healthy
Lifestyles customers
demonstrating a significant
improvement in their
mental wellbeing score

Bigger is
Better

226 197 131 81 87

The numbers seeing a significant improvement in their mental wellbeing score in Q3 is
similar to Q2   87 (52%) in Q3 compared to 81 (47%) in Q2.

N.B  this is a subset of those people receiving support from the service as not everyone
agrees for their wellbeing to be measured

Improving mental wellbeing is not a primary function of the service. However, we included
this as an indicator to monitor what, if any, impact a lifestyle change intervention by the
service may have on mental wellbeing. 

There are a number of things that impact on someone's mental wellbeing so it is difficult
to disaggregate the impact that the service can have from external influences. However,
we track this indicator to gain more insight on the wider impact the service can have
outwith its primary function.

However the data show that 123 (74.1%) of those accessing the service to improve lifestyle
behaviour also see an improvement in their mental health.
87/166 (52.4%) saw a significant improvement
36 (21.7%) showed some improvement
28 (16.9%) remaining the same.
15 (9.0%) got worse

% of Healthy Lifestyles
customers demonstrating a
significant improvement in
their mental wellbeing
score

Bigger is
Better

77.0 % 69.0 % 62.0 % 47.0 % 52.0 % See comment above.

% of all Healthy Lifestyles
customers who achieve a
significant risk factor
improvement

Bigger is
Better

69.0 % 83.0 % 73.0 % 76.0 % 72.0 %

High numbers of service users continue to make behaviour changes that will impact on
their health with 769 / 1072 (72%) of users achieving a significant improvement. Service
users are contacted within 2 days, see the same coach throughout their programme and
coaches are trained in motivational interviewing and see people at a place that is
convenient to them.   

Of the 303 that did not meet the threshold for significant improvement 189 (17.6%) made
some improvement in achieving their behaviour change goal. 

Therefore in total 958 (89.3%) made some improvement in their behaviour change goal.

Percentage of people
eligible for an NHS Health
Check who have received
one

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

64.6 % 61.2 % 66.6 % 37.8 % ? ?

Unfortunately, Q3 performance data for NHS Health Checks has been
delayed. This is due to the introduction of a new clinical audit tool for
primary care which has caused issues with extracting the data from GP
providers. The Q3 data will be entered when the issues are resolved. Q2
uptake levels appear to show a fall which is out of line with the previous
trend in the county. This may be relate to the data quality issues caused
by the new extraction tool. Data will be checked for accuracy and revised
if necessary. Should uptake in Q3 remain  below expected levels, further
work will be undertaken with GP providers to understand what might be
causing any fall.

% of children who received
a 1 year check by 1 year

Bigger is
Better

79.0 % 78.6 % 78.1 % 82.1 % 83.7 %

This indicator is broken down under indicators PH97i, PH97ii and PH97iii to show health
visitors' effectiveness with more vulnerable children and families. This narrative supports
the data for all three indicators.
Q2 demonstrates an improvement in the percentage of more vulnerable children seen
within timeframe from Q1. In Q2 85.5% of UP children were seen within timeframe up
from 67.5% in Q1 and in Q2 85.2% UPP children were seen within timeframe up from
75.8% in Q1.
For Q2 from 1,735 eligible children 89% received this mandated check but some were out
of timeframe. The service aims to review all children by age 912months but the review
continues to be a valid assessment of development up to aged 15 months.
The remaining 11% equates to 190 children who did not receive the 12 month check. This
190 consisted of 3 UP and 3 UPP children who show as not receiving a 912m check. 1
child was a child in care who received the check 2 weeks too early and therefore shows as
not seen for 912m (as per Child in Care policy this child has their ASQ completed every 6
months). 2 children had moved out of area and therefore were not seen and 3 DNA'd their
appointments. These children have had their appointment rebooked as per protocol for UP
and UPP children.  The remaining 184 were Universal children, 112 children DNA'd their
first appointments and have appointments coming up within the 15 month timeframe. 12
children had moved out of area and therefore were not seen, 19 declined and 41 DNA'd
their 2 appointment.
The Q3 lag data when reported will confirm the percentage of these 12 month reviews
that have been completed within the 15 months timescale for this current Q2 cohort of
children.

% of infants being
breastfed at 68 weeks
(breastfeeding prevalence)

Bigger is
Better

Rolling Year 49.2 % 53.0 % 51.6 % 53.6 % 54.3 %

Q2 18/19 rate of 54.3%  continues the improvement trend from 17/18 but remains below
the local aim of 58%.  GCC continues to commission a revised Breastfeeding Peer
Support service targeting areas with lower rates of uptake and increased numbers of
younger mums than the Gloucestershire average. BFPS offer support in the more deprived
wards of Gloucester, Cheltenham and the Forest of Dean.  Further initiatives contributing
to increasing Breastfeeding rates are facilitated by the Gloucestershire Infant Feeding
Strategic partnership led by GCC.

% live births that receive a
face to face New Birth Visit
within 714 days by a
health visitor

Bigger is
Better

93.3 % 87.8 % 87.6 % 88.8 % 89.4 %

The data for PH96 is also broken down by level of need indicators Universal (U), Universal
Plus (UP) and Universal Partnership Plus (UPP) these are nationally recognised offers in
Health Visiting. And demonstrate health visitors' effectiveness with more vulnerable
children and families. This narrative supports the data for all three indicators.
For Q2 from 1,608 eligible babies 99.7% received this mandated check but some were
outside of the 714 day time frame. The remaining 0.3% equates to 5 children not being
seen within a 30 day time frame. Of these five, 3 are UPP families and these children are
Children in Care who were placed at the time out of county. These children have since
been seen by Gloucestershire Health Visiting on return to the county. The remaining 2
were Universal families, one moved out of county at birth and one declined the HV
service.

% of live births to universal
families that receive a face
to face New Birth Visit
within 7 14 days by a
Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

93.8 % 88.5 % 88.1 % 90.5 % 91.2 %

% of live births to universal
plus families that receive a
face to face New Birth Visit
within 7 14 days by a
Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

89.6 % 85.3 % 84.4 % 71.6 % 71.6 %

% live births to universal
partnership plus families
that receive a face to face
New Birth Visit within 7 14
days by a Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

89.0 % 78.1 % 81.0 % 71.7 % 72.5 %

% of eligible children in Reception who participate in
the National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 96.0 % 98.0 % 96.7 % 95.0 %

% of eligible children in Year 6 who participate in the
National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 93.6 % 97.5 % 97.0 % 95.0 %

Rate of new STI diagnosis in sexual health services
(excluding under 25 Chlamydia)

Smaller is
Better

? ? 514.0 600.0

**Updated data is not available this qtr.** The indicator is updated
annually. Data shown is annual data for 2017 and is the latest data
available. The rate of new STI diagnoses in the county is significantly
below the national average. A high diagnosis rate can be indicative of a
high burden of infection.

Number of adults receiving
alcohol brief interventions

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 798 1,256 389 853 795 250

Proportion of all Opiate
Users in treatment, who
successfully completed
treatment and did not
represent within 6 months
of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

7.7 % 5.6 % 4.6 % 4.1 % 4.6 % 4.6 %

Proportion of all Non
Opiate Users in treatment,
who successfully
completed treatment and
did not represent within 6
months of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

35.6 31.0 22.8 21.0 27.2 22.8

Effective engagement rate
of Opiate Users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

93.0 % 95.0 % 94.3 % 95.5 % 95.5 % 85.0 %

Effective engagement rate
of NonOpiate users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

78.0 % 75.0 % 75.7 % 76.3 % 76.3 % 55.0 %

Proportion of adult alcohol
misusers who have left
treatment successfully

Bigger is
Better

41.3 % 34.7 % 29.3 % 27.7 % 32.6 % 29.5 %

Percentage of clients
waiting under 3 weeks for
drug treatment intervention

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

99.6 % 99.3 % 98.5 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 90.0 %

Percentage of clients
waiting under 3 weeks for
alcohol treatment
intervention

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

100.0 % 99.2 % 97.8 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 90.0 %

Healthy Lifestyles  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

Healthy Lifestyles  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

NHS Health Checks  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18
Target Dec
18

Comments Dec18

Children's Public Health  Quarterly Trend Analysis No Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Children's Public Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target  Calendar Year
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Dec16 Dec17 Dec18
Target Dec
18

Comments Dec18

Sexual Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Dec16 Dec17 Dec18
Target Dec
18

Comments Dec18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18
Target Dec
18

Comments Dec18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18
Target Sep
18

Comments Sep18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18
Target Sep
18

Comments Sep18

5

P
age 5

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col17')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col18')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col24')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col19')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col20')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col21')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col22')


Number of Healthy
Lifestyles customers
demonstrating a significant
improvement in their
mental wellbeing score

Bigger is
Better

226 197 131 81 87

The numbers seeing a significant improvement in their mental wellbeing score in Q3 is
similar to Q2   87 (52%) in Q3 compared to 81 (47%) in Q2.

N.B  this is a subset of those people receiving support from the service as not everyone
agrees for their wellbeing to be measured

Improving mental wellbeing is not a primary function of the service. However, we included
this as an indicator to monitor what, if any, impact a lifestyle change intervention by the
service may have on mental wellbeing. 

There are a number of things that impact on someone's mental wellbeing so it is difficult
to disaggregate the impact that the service can have from external influences. However,
we track this indicator to gain more insight on the wider impact the service can have
outwith its primary function.

However the data show that 123 (74.1%) of those accessing the service to improve lifestyle
behaviour also see an improvement in their mental health.
87/166 (52.4%) saw a significant improvement
36 (21.7%) showed some improvement
28 (16.9%) remaining the same.
15 (9.0%) got worse

% of Healthy Lifestyles
customers demonstrating a
significant improvement in
their mental wellbeing
score

Bigger is
Better

77.0 % 69.0 % 62.0 % 47.0 % 52.0 % See comment above.

% of all Healthy Lifestyles
customers who achieve a
significant risk factor
improvement

Bigger is
Better

69.0 % 83.0 % 73.0 % 76.0 % 72.0 %

High numbers of service users continue to make behaviour changes that will impact on
their health with 769 / 1072 (72%) of users achieving a significant improvement. Service
users are contacted within 2 days, see the same coach throughout their programme and
coaches are trained in motivational interviewing and see people at a place that is
convenient to them.   

Of the 303 that did not meet the threshold for significant improvement 189 (17.6%) made
some improvement in achieving their behaviour change goal. 

Therefore in total 958 (89.3%) made some improvement in their behaviour change goal.

Percentage of people
eligible for an NHS Health
Check who have received
one

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

64.6 % 61.2 % 66.6 % 37.8 % ? ?

Unfortunately, Q3 performance data for NHS Health Checks has been
delayed. This is due to the introduction of a new clinical audit tool for
primary care which has caused issues with extracting the data from GP
providers. The Q3 data will be entered when the issues are resolved. Q2
uptake levels appear to show a fall which is out of line with the previous
trend in the county. This may be relate to the data quality issues caused
by the new extraction tool. Data will be checked for accuracy and revised
if necessary. Should uptake in Q3 remain  below expected levels, further
work will be undertaken with GP providers to understand what might be
causing any fall.

% of children who received
a 1 year check by 1 year

Bigger is
Better

79.0 % 78.6 % 78.1 % 82.1 % 83.7 %

This indicator is broken down under indicators PH97i, PH97ii and PH97iii to show health
visitors' effectiveness with more vulnerable children and families. This narrative supports
the data for all three indicators.
Q2 demonstrates an improvement in the percentage of more vulnerable children seen
within timeframe from Q1. In Q2 85.5% of UP children were seen within timeframe up
from 67.5% in Q1 and in Q2 85.2% UPP children were seen within timeframe up from
75.8% in Q1.
For Q2 from 1,735 eligible children 89% received this mandated check but some were out
of timeframe. The service aims to review all children by age 912months but the review
continues to be a valid assessment of development up to aged 15 months.
The remaining 11% equates to 190 children who did not receive the 12 month check. This
190 consisted of 3 UP and 3 UPP children who show as not receiving a 912m check. 1
child was a child in care who received the check 2 weeks too early and therefore shows as
not seen for 912m (as per Child in Care policy this child has their ASQ completed every 6
months). 2 children had moved out of area and therefore were not seen and 3 DNA'd their
appointments. These children have had their appointment rebooked as per protocol for UP
and UPP children.  The remaining 184 were Universal children, 112 children DNA'd their
first appointments and have appointments coming up within the 15 month timeframe. 12
children had moved out of area and therefore were not seen, 19 declined and 41 DNA'd
their 2 appointment.
The Q3 lag data when reported will confirm the percentage of these 12 month reviews
that have been completed within the 15 months timescale for this current Q2 cohort of
children.

% of infants being
breastfed at 68 weeks
(breastfeeding prevalence)

Bigger is
Better

Rolling Year 49.2 % 53.0 % 51.6 % 53.6 % 54.3 %

Q2 18/19 rate of 54.3%  continues the improvement trend from 17/18 but remains below
the local aim of 58%.  GCC continues to commission a revised Breastfeeding Peer
Support service targeting areas with lower rates of uptake and increased numbers of
younger mums than the Gloucestershire average. BFPS offer support in the more deprived
wards of Gloucester, Cheltenham and the Forest of Dean.  Further initiatives contributing
to increasing Breastfeeding rates are facilitated by the Gloucestershire Infant Feeding
Strategic partnership led by GCC.

% live births that receive a
face to face New Birth Visit
within 714 days by a
health visitor

Bigger is
Better

93.3 % 87.8 % 87.6 % 88.8 % 89.4 %

The data for PH96 is also broken down by level of need indicators Universal (U), Universal
Plus (UP) and Universal Partnership Plus (UPP) these are nationally recognised offers in
Health Visiting. And demonstrate health visitors' effectiveness with more vulnerable
children and families. This narrative supports the data for all three indicators.
For Q2 from 1,608 eligible babies 99.7% received this mandated check but some were
outside of the 714 day time frame. The remaining 0.3% equates to 5 children not being
seen within a 30 day time frame. Of these five, 3 are UPP families and these children are
Children in Care who were placed at the time out of county. These children have since
been seen by Gloucestershire Health Visiting on return to the county. The remaining 2
were Universal families, one moved out of county at birth and one declined the HV
service.

% of live births to universal
families that receive a face
to face New Birth Visit
within 7 14 days by a
Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

93.8 % 88.5 % 88.1 % 90.5 % 91.2 %

% of live births to universal
plus families that receive a
face to face New Birth Visit
within 7 14 days by a
Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

89.6 % 85.3 % 84.4 % 71.6 % 71.6 %

% live births to universal
partnership plus families
that receive a face to face
New Birth Visit within 7 14
days by a Health Visitor

Bigger is
Better

89.0 % 78.1 % 81.0 % 71.7 % 72.5 %

% of eligible children in Reception who participate in
the National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 96.0 % 98.0 % 96.7 % 95.0 %

% of eligible children in Year 6 who participate in the
National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)

Bigger is
Better

Annual 93.6 % 97.5 % 97.0 % 95.0 %

Rate of new STI diagnosis in sexual health services
(excluding under 25 Chlamydia)

Smaller is
Better

? ? 514.0 600.0

**Updated data is not available this qtr.** The indicator is updated
annually. Data shown is annual data for 2017 and is the latest data
available. The rate of new STI diagnoses in the county is significantly
below the national average. A high diagnosis rate can be indicative of a
high burden of infection.

Number of adults receiving
alcohol brief interventions

Bigger is
Better

Year to Date 798 1,256 389 853 795 250

Proportion of all Opiate
Users in treatment, who
successfully completed
treatment and did not
represent within 6 months
of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

7.7 % 5.6 % 4.6 % 4.1 % 4.6 % 4.6 %

Proportion of all Non
Opiate Users in treatment,
who successfully
completed treatment and
did not represent within 6
months of completion

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

35.6 31.0 22.8 21.0 27.2 22.8

Effective engagement rate
of Opiate Users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

93.0 % 95.0 % 94.3 % 95.5 % 95.5 % 85.0 %

Effective engagement rate
of NonOpiate users

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

78.0 % 75.0 % 75.7 % 76.3 % 76.3 % 55.0 %

Proportion of adult alcohol
misusers who have left
treatment successfully

Bigger is
Better

41.3 % 34.7 % 29.3 % 27.7 % 32.6 % 29.5 %

Percentage of clients
waiting under 3 weeks for
drug treatment intervention

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

99.6 % 99.3 % 98.5 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 90.0 %

Percentage of clients
waiting under 3 weeks for
alcohol treatment
intervention

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

100.0 % 99.2 % 97.8 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 90.0 %

Healthy Lifestyles  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

Healthy Lifestyles  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

NHS Health Checks  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18
Target Dec
18

Comments Dec18

Children's Public Health  Quarterly Trend Analysis No Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Children's Public Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target  Calendar Year
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Dec16 Dec17 Dec18
Target Dec
18

Comments Dec18

Sexual Health  Annual Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Dec16 Dec17 Dec18
Target Dec
18

Comments Dec18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18
Target Dec
18

Comments Dec18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18
Target Sep
18

Comments Sep18

Drugs & Alcohol  Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (1 Quarter in Arrears)
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18
Target Sep
18

Comments Sep18

6

P
age 6

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col17')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col18')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col24')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col19')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col20')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col21')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C4','Col22')


 

 

 

 

Gloucestershire Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee (HCOSC) 

March 2019 

One Gloucestershire ICS Lead Report 

 
 
 
 

 
The following report provides an update to HCOSC members on 
the progress of key programme and projects across 
Gloucestershire’s Integrated Care System (ICS) to date.   

Gloucestershire’s Sustainability & Transformation Plan commenced year two of four in April 2018, since 
then we have made progress in embedding and delivering key schemes outlined within the plan, in an 
increasingly challenging health and care environment. We continue to develop our delivery plans 
against our main priority programmes. In this report we provide an update on 2018/19 progress made 
against the priority delivery programmes and supporting enabling programmes included within 
Gloucestershire as we transition to an Integrated Care System (ICS).  

 

 

Gloucestershire’s ICS Plan on a page  

 

  

1. Introduction 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



 

2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The Enabling Active Communities programme looks to build a new 
sense of personal responsibility and improved independence for 
health, supporting community capacity and working with the 
voluntary and community sector.  

 
The development of the Gloucestershire Prevention and Shared Care Plan, led by Public Health, aims 
to reduce the health and wellbeing gap and recognises that more systematic prevention is critical in 
order to reduce the overall burden of disease in the population and maintain financial sustainability in 
our system. 
 

Key priorities for 2018/19 are: 

 Reach the target of over 5,000 patients being on the National Diabetes Prevention 
Programme  

 Appoint a GP Clinical Champion in Diabetes to further raise the profile of diabetic care in 
general practice (completed) 

 Commission a new Child Weight Management Service and implement our new adult Weight 
Management Service Model to support people to reduce their weight in a sustainable way 

 Continue to deliver an early identification and intervention model for victims of domestic 
abuse  

 Develop a Breastfeeding Social Marketing campaign  

 Progress the Gloucestershire Moves project (getting 30,000 inactive people active) and see 
the first pilots underway; including ‘Beat the Street’ and older people at risk of falls  

 Launch a new postpartum contraception service  

 Launch our new Gloucestershire Self-Management Education Programme called ‘Live 
Better, Feel Better’ and Support over 200 individuals through our new Self-Management 
Service  

 Create a direct route into the community wellbeing service from urgent care (A&E, urgent 
treatment centres) to support people who attend for non-medical reasons 

 Expand the arts on prescription service  

 Increase our focus on support the following pathways with self-care and prevention 
schemes: adult mental health; paediatric epilepsy; paediatric Type 1 diabetes; Tier 3 obesity, 
adult chronic pain and adult respiratory pathways 

Update on progress over the last two months: 

Supporting Pathways 
 

 There have been a total of 2819 referrals onto the National Diabetes Prevention Programme 
(NDPP) in Gloucestershire to date. Initial data for Gloucestershire show an average weight 
loss over 6 months of 4.6kg as a direct result of the NDPP, which again is better than the 
national picture (-3.4kg). 

 Additional funding has been secured which will allow investment in the development of self-
care resources that will complement the Tier 2 Child Weight Management Pilot. 

 The number of interventions delivered by the Postpartum Contraception Team is increasing. 
The ‘contraceptive counselling’ approach has been particularly successful in supporting 
women making postpartum contraception decisions. 
 

 
Supporting People 
 

 59 professionals have taken on the Domestic Abuse (DA) Champion Role across the 
county’s 76 surgeries and in total, 1387 health professionals have been trained across 70 DA 

2. Enabling Active 
Communities 

Page 8



 

3 
 

workshops and learning events covering all localities. 

 A new version of hospital food standards is due to be published in 2019; this will include 
substantial restrictions on High in Fat, Sugar or Salt  (HFSS) foods and beverages. All Trusts 
will be required by the NHS standard contract to deliver against these standards. 

 Patient Activation Measures (PAM) continue to be used in early adopter sites mainly around 
frailty and in group education sessions delivered by Gloucestershire Care Services NHS 
Trust (GCS). The Living Well with Pain programme has commenced a short life initiative to 
use PAM to segment the waiting list. If successful, this new approach will mean that patients 
who are currently waiting for pain management support may be able to receive their care 
more quickly as they can be directed to a range of appropriate support services based on 
their level of personal activation, rather than waiting to see a consultant before other support 
services can be accessed.  
 

Supporting Places & Communities 
 

 Identification of potential community leaders, who are keen to set up various community groups, 
is occurring across all the delivery pilots as part of the Strengthening Local Communities 
Projects. 

 There have been over 4129 referrals into the Community Wellbeing Service (CWS).  Data shows 
a reduction in primary care attendances for those using the service.  Local social prescribing 
work was filmed for an ITV feature at the request of NHS England. Gloucestershire’s social 
prescribing outcome framework is being adopted by NHS England for all NHS funded schemes. 

 The Gloucestershire Moves steering group have agreed to re-run the Beat The Street game in 
Gloucester in the summer 2019, a successful initiative that got young people and their families 
more active across Gloucester city when piloted in the summer of 2018.  
 

Supporting Workforce 
 

 Public Health England are in the process of commissioning guidance for workplace wellbeing 
accreditation schemes. The Gloucestershire scheme being created by the Gloucestershire 
County Council Public Health team and Healthy Lifestyles provider is due to 'go live' in April 
2019. Work continues on this and will incorporate any Public Health England guidance when 
available. 

 A business wellbeing network event is planned for February. A number of speakers have 
already been confirmed for this event. This will bring businesses together to receive 
information and discuss health and wellbeing in the workplace 

 A workshop event called ‘sharing the learning’ is being developed and will be held during 
March and will involve partners across the health and care system. This event will help to 
inform the evaluation and subsequent recommendations for taking health coaching forward 
across the ICS. 

 
 

  

Page 9



 

4 
 

 

The Clinical Programme Approach has been adopted across our 
local health care system to ensure a collaborative approach to 
systematically redesign the way care is delivered in our system, by 
reorganising care pathways and delivery systems to deliver right 
care, in the right place, at the right time. 

 Priorities 2018/19 Progress So Far… 

Respiratory 

Deliver a comprehensive education and 
training package for health care 
professionals working in primary care 
and managing long term respiratory 
conditions, to improve care outcomes 
for patients.  

Support primary care to stop 
prescribing steroids where they are not 
having a significant impact on an 
individual’s quality of life 

Continue to bring together the hospital 
and community respiratory teams 
together into one integrated team  

 
The detailed implementation plan for 
integration is agreed which includes 
impact measures. An integrated approach 
to referral management and clinical triage 
has been developed. 
 
A working group has been established to 
agree the patient pathway and 
pharmaceutical regime supporting IV 
antibiotics in the community / at home for 
the Bronchiectasis including IV Therapy 
patient cohort. Once delivered it will mean 
more patients can be supported at home 
as an alternative to a hospital admission.  

Musculoskeletal 
(MSK) 

Embed the Advanced Practitioner 
Service (APS) providing physiotherapy 
support to patients in primary care.  

Roll out MSK triage service which 
provides expert clinical review at the 
point of referral. 

Design and implement a countywide 
integrated approach to falls prevention 

83% of referrals for APS and Orthopaedics 
are now going through MSK Specialist 
Triage and 88% of GHFT referrals are via 
MSK Specialist Triage. There continues to 
be an overall reduction in direct 
orthopaedic referrals for other orthopaedic 
providers. 

The first two Risk of Falls training events 
will be delivered in Gloucestershire via the 
GP/ Nurse PLT events in Gloucester. This 
will provide primary care clinicians with 
additional skills to help prevent patients 
from having falls in the future.  

Circulatory 

The circulatory clinical programme is 
working to develop improvements to 
heart failure care for people living in 
Gloucestershire, to develop additional 
cardiac rehabilitation places to extend 
cardiac rehabilitation to all heart 
conditions not just patients who have 
heart attacks, and to progress our local 
proposals for community based stroke 
rehabilitation.  

 
Cardiovascular Disease Prevention blood 
pressure community testing programme is 
on track and feedback on our public 
awareness materials are currently being 
gathered from the HealthWatch team. 
 
Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust (GHFT) now have a full 
rota of specialist nurses which will support 
the 1 Hour Troponin pathway. This 
pathway enables patients who go to 
hospital with a heart attack to be 
diagnosed more quickly so they can be 
provided with optimal care.   
 

3. Clinical 
Programme 
Approach 

Page 10



 

5 
 

The roll out of the new Stroke 
Rehabilitation model is now on track 
against key milestones with the service 
going live at the Vale hospital in February.  
 

Eye Health 

Develop the enhanced community eye 
care offer to provide additional eye care 
services for patients in the community 
rather than in hospital.  

Implement the new NICE guidelines 
within Ophthalmology 

 
The Eye health Clinical Programme 
continues to work to expand the range of 
conditions that optometrists can manage 
in the community to provide an alternative 
to hospital based care in people’s local 
communities. In the next couple of 
months, new expanded services for minor 
eye conditions will be available.  
 
Within the hospital, we have a valuable 
service provided by the Royal National 
Institute for the Blind (RNIB). TheEye Care 
Liaison Officer service provides patients 
who have recently developed low vision 
holistic support and guidance of how to 
access low vision support available in the 
community. Following fantastic feedback 
from patients, carers and staff we have 
extended the funding from 5 days to 6 
days at both of our main hospital sites in 
Gloucester and Cheltenham.  
 
 

Diabetes 

Our diabetes clinical programme 
continues to focus on improving 
outcomes for people living with 
diabetes in our county.  

To support our ambitions we have 
identified a number of new ways of 
working, To support these we need to 
recruit a part-time Consultant 
Diabetologist, to work with care homes 
to provide training to staff on “caring for 
patients with diabetes” and working 
closely with primary care to improve 
primary provision for this patient group. 
We are also rolling out structured 
education programmes for patients 
recently diagnosed with diabetes to 
support self care.  

 

 
Diabetes Enhanced Service practice 
performance against the 8 care processes 
has improved by 11.5% and is above the 
England average. · GP Clinical 
Champion visits have been organised 
across the county as part of service 
improvement of 8 care processes in order 
to reduce variation in care.  178 
professionals (GPs, nurses, podiatrist, 
SWAST and other AHPs) now signed up 
to the online Cambridge Diabetes 
Education programme in order to improve 
competencies and reduce variation across 
practices, with aotal of 389 topics already 
completed by candidates. 
 

Cancer 
Progress towards the 2020/21 ambition 
for more cancers to be diagnosed at the 

 
Meeting held with Public Health & 
Information Team, working in collaboration 

Page 11



 

6 
 

earliest stages  

Deliver the Prostate Cancer 
Surveillance Project 

 

with CA/Macmillan/CRUK partners, to 
provide Cancer CPG updated health 
needs assessment to support programme 
planning for better early diagnosis 
performance and health inequality focus.   
Data requirements and next steps agreed 
 

Children & 
Maternity 

Develop community hubs and integrate 
better together services that support 
women and families in the early years 

Implement our ‘Safer Maternity Care’ 
Action plan 

Develop models of care supporting 
women to have the same carer 
throughout pregnancy, birth & post-
natal care 

Aim to have 30 to 40 children who live 
with a long term condition supported 
with Personalised Care Plans by Mar 
19 

 

Good progress being achieved in all 
areas, momentum maintained and work 
being driven forward with Better Births 
Team through each of the workstream’s. 
The workstream’s within the Better Births 
Programme include; 

 Transforming the workforce 

 Postnatal & Transitional Care 

 Safer Care 

 Perinatal Mental Health 

 Choice & Personalisation 

  

Page 12



 

7 
 

Learning 
Disability 

Enabling individuals with a Learning 
Disability to use Personal Health 
Budgets to ensure they have control of 
the support they receive 

Embed the “Stopping Over Medication 
of People with LD” campaign to reduce 
the prescriptions of anti-psychotic drugs 
where they are not clinically 
recommended 

Ensure that 75% of people with a LD on 
the GP LD Register receive an Annual 
Health Check by Quarter 4 19/20 

The Learning Disability and Autism Clinical 
Programme Group has highlighted the 
need for a better understanding of people 
living in Gloucestershire to give them a 
more robust evidence base for planning 
future commissioning activities in line with 
the Building Better Lives & Building The 
Right Support Vision. The output from this 
project will be an evidence base which we 
are calling a Learning Disabilities & Autism 
Joint Strategic Needs Analysis (JSNA). 
Inclusion Gloucestershire have been 
commissioned to run co-produced 
engagement events and input into the 
development of the survey. 

Mental Health 

Continue to take steps to Improve 
Access to Psychological Therapies 
(IAPT), to ensure we meet standards 
for access, recovery and waiting times 
to treatment  

Make further improvements to the 
Eating Disorder Pathway 

Implement an all age Autism strategy  

Roll out mandatory mental health 
training for staff in schools 

Improve support to foster carers and 
children entering the care system 

Procure emotional support for children 
who have experienced sexual assault / 
abuse 

 
The Cavern continues to be attended 
regularly every evening by up to 50 
people. The Cavern provides 3 members 
of staff to support people in the evenings 
and has employed security staff on the 
entrance to ensure that all individuals are 
accessing the service appropriately. They 
are currently reporting positive outcomes 
in improved quality of life for the people 
accessing the service. 
 
Glos County Council have funded non-
recurrently a workforce development lead 
for crisis care.  This position will be 
embedded within 2gNHSFT training 
department working closely with their 
Mental Health Acute Response 
service.  Priority group for training will 
initially be police with a view to reducing 
s136 detentions.  The post will also lead 
on the development of the multi-agency 
training plan for crisis care.  

Dementia 

Develop a countywide approach to 
improve community dementia services  

Implement the Community Hospital 
Mental Health Liaison Team pilot 

The Dementia Advisor caseload has 
significantly increased from 500 a year in 
2017, to 1600 a year in 2018. This 
ensures that more people have access to 
information and support from diagnosis, 
with a focus on modifying/reducing 
dementia risk factors. 

The Diagnosis Rate (DDR) has maintained 
above NHSE target position of 68.4% 
December 2018.  

Significant progress has been made in 
describing a county integrated model for 
dementia that uses a key worker approach 
and case management 

Page 13



 

8 
 

End of Life 

Our aim is to improve end of life care 
for people in Gloucestershire by 
working with stakeholders across our 
system and learning from patient and 
carers stories. We have developed an 
End of Life strategy for the county and 
aim to roll out standardised guidance 
for all clinicians to work to, to improve 
care. This will be launched through our 
countywide care pathways system G 
Care.  

We have finalised the new EoL G-Care 
page which will be launched in February.  
 
In addition our EoL project support officer 
has commenced her role and is a support 
to the whole Clinical Programme team. 
Her first job is to develop a bi-monthly 
Gloucestershire EoL newsletter for all 
stakeholders and members of the public, 
to improve communication and therefore 
outcomes for patients. . 

 

 

Focus On: Gloucestershire’s Mental Health Trailblazer Programme 

The Green Paper, published in December 2017, detailed proposals for expanding access to 
mental health care for children and young people by providing additional support through 
schools and colleges and reducing waiting times for treatment. The new services are 
expected to be rolled out to between a third and a fifth of the country by 2023-24, with further 
improvements for children and young people’s services promised in the NHS long-term plan. 

In December 2018, the Government announced Trailblazer sites, and Gloucestershire was 
successful in securing £5m funding up until 2021. This funding will support the 
implementation of four Mental Health Support Teams (MHSTs) in Gloucestershire  to 
develop models of early intervention on mild to moderate mental health issues, such as 
exam stress, behavioural difficulties or friendship issues, as well as providing help to staff 
within a school and college setting. As well as piloting Mental Health Support Teams, 12 
sites across the country including Gloucestershire have been selected to trial a four-week 
waiting time for referral to treatment for specialist children and young people’s mental health 
services, building on the expansion of NHS services already underway.  

The Model in Gloucestershire  

The four MHSTs will be working with 
selected schools, colleges and special 
schools chosen in three locality areas; 
Cheltenham, Forest of Dean and 
Gloucester City. Based on a local 
needs analysis, schools were invited to 
become a Trailblazer School and we 
are delighted that 72 have signed up 
and have subsequently identified a 
Mental Health Trailblazer Lead. 

Each team will cover a population of 
8000 students aged between 5-18 
years. Mental Health Support Teams 

will build on support already in place from services in place including school counsellors, 
support children and young people with mild to moderate mental health issues and help 
children and young people with more severe needs to access the right support, and provide 
a link to specialist NHS services.  

Each designated team will comprise of:  

Page 14



 

9 
 

• 4 Education Mental Health Practitioners (EMHPs)  

• 2 Primary Mental Health Practitioners (PMHPs)  

• 0.5 Team Manager  

• Additional Face to Face Counselling   

Four Week Wait (4WW)  

In developing and delivering our Future in Mind Long Term Plan (LTP) the overwhelming 
feedback from stakeholders was around providing earlier intervention with children and 
young people directly reporting “waiting times need to be reduced”. We believe that 
providing earlier intervention through reduced waiting times will support children and 
young people to achieve in all parts of their lives and prevent issues escalating.  
 
Our proposal is to have a gradual improvement over 18/19 and 19/20 to a sustainable 
position by the end of April 2020 where our local provider 2gether NHS Foundation Trust 
has committed to achieving:  
 

 100% of CYP have initial access appointment within 2 weeks.  

 50% of CYP have access and have a second appointment within 4 weeks.  

 100% of CYP have access and a second appointment within 6 weeks  
 

Progress so far 

Mental Health Support Teams (MHSTs) 

Education Mental Health Practitioners (EMHP’s) will be practising one day per week from the 

end of April 2019 and training will be graduated until November 2019 at which point EMHPs 

will be fully operational. We therefore plan to use a “test and learn” approach with ten Early 

Adopter Schools for the Spring & Summer school terms so that we can receive feedback 

and refine the core offers, referral pathway and training matrix as necessary.  

Working towards formal launch to all Trailblazer Schools during Autumn Term 2019, a 

complimentary communication and engagement plan informed by the staff, parents and 

children & young people from our Early Adopter schools will be developed.   

A working group to focus on evaluation of the programme has been established and a 

framework is being developed.  

Four Week Wait (4WW) 

Our local provider, 2gether NHS Foundation Trust, has begun recruitment of additional 
Therapists and has commenced refinement of the operational model in order to meet 
national targets.  

  

Page 15



 

10 
 

 
The Reducing Clinical Variation programme looks to elevate key 
issues of clinical variation to system level and have a new joined up 
conversation with the public around some of the harder priority 
decisions we will need to make. This includes building on the 
variation approach with primary care, promoting ‘Choosing Wisely’ 
and a Medicines Optimisation approach and undertaking a 
diagnostics review. 

 
Key priorities for 2018/19 are 

 The successful Prescribing Support dietetics role will be expanded to support change in the 
recommendation of oral vitamin B vs Vitamin B injections, advice and support around optimising 
the use of calcium and vitamin D, as well as reviewing and producing infant milk guidance to 
ensure appropriate support to patients via primary care 

 Continue to support, develop and extend the Repeat Prescription Ordering Service for 
Gloucestershire patients to support the reduction of prescribed waste medication. 

 Continue to support reducing Polypharmacy (the use of multiple medications at the same time) 
in patients, initial focus on frail patients, and extend it to groups such as those in care homes 
with the aim of reducing unwanted side effects  

 Implement a paper referral switch off so that all referrals to consultant led services are made via 
an electronic system by October 2018 (in line with national guidance.)  

 Implement patient led booking to give patients more control over their follow up care. 

 Implement GP peer review of referrals to support consistency of patient management at a 
locality level. 

 Continued development of alternatives to face to face follow up outpatient appointments 

 Reducing the number of people who failed to attend a booked hospital appointment through a 
public awareness campaign and by establishing a reminder services 

 Continue to make improvements to Operating Theatre, Radiology and Pathology pathways to 
reduce waste 

 

What we’ve achieved so far: 

 The 2018/19 Savings Plan supports a saving opportunity of £5m across a range of prescribed 
medicines. . The Prescribing Improvement Plan (PIP) continues within practices.  

 Work continues in practices around the medicines management elements of the Primary Care 
Offer included in the Primary Care Offer (PCO)18/19 

 Reviews continue for prescribing for “Conditions for which over the counter items should not 
routinely be prescribed in primary care”. 

 The extra Prescription Ordering Line (POL) staff are trained and now operational.  

 The team of practice based pharmacists and technicians continue to expand in response to 
requests where funding has been approved. We are now developing a “short notice short term 
support team” who are able to support practices for short but intensive periods of time when 
need arises. 

 Advice & Guidance (A&G) requests continue to be well above target levels with a total of 9,675 
requests received, compared to the target of 6,484. All planned specialties are now live with the 
exception of Ophthalmology. NHS England/ NHS Digital have highlighted Gloucestershire as the 
third highest user of the electronic referral system (eRS) A&G in the country, and as a result the 
national lead for eRS will be visiting Gloucestershire in March.  

 G-care site (website for GPs on clinical pathways) views continue to exceed 2017/18 levels with 
50,045 site views in 2018/19 The G-care search function has been updated and re-launched to 
address technical issues and improve usability and GP feedback has been positive. A number of 
other potential developments to G-care are being reviewed in order to further enhance the 
platform. 

 Inpatient/Day Case efficiency project: The Did Not Attend reduction campaign launched on 11th 

4. Reducing Clinical 
Variation 

Page 16



 

11 
 

December through social media. Posters have also been circulated to GP practices, GHFT, and 
pharmacies and the local media has picked up the campaign and provided some coverage. The 
first social media video had 125,000 views and reached almost 70,000 people.  

 
 

Focus on Quality 
 

As our Integrated Care System matures we are developing a Quality Framework; whilst the Framework 
is currently in the early stages it aims to set out our ambitions for the future and emphasis quality as a 
central pillar of the ICS. 
 
The three main NHS providers in Gloucestershire, as well as the South West Ambulance Service, are 
all now rated ‘Good’ by the Care Quality Commission (CQC). Primary Care is also positively rated by 
the CQC. Out of the county’s 75 practices, two ‘Require Improvement’ 69 are rated ‘Good’ and four are 
‘Outstanding’. While this is a commendable position to be in, the system continues to strive for 
improvement.   
 
Care Homes in Gloucestershire have also fared well with the CQC, with overall ratings being slightly 
better than the National figures.  It is significant that there are no Gloucestershire Care Homes with an 
overall CQC rating of Inadequate and commendable that there are 12 Care Homes with an overall CQC 
rating of Outstanding. The graph below shows the increase in care homes rated as good/outstanding 
between 2018 and 2019.  We have a collaborative partnership approach for support and training for 
quality improvements for Care Homes to meet CQC requirements.  Central to this, the Care Home 
Support Team (CHST) offer a range of bespoke training, support and advice. 67% of Gloucestershire’s 
domicilary care providers are rated as good/outstanding in line with England rates. 
 

 
 
Using the learning from last winter’s seasonal influenza programme, we are working together on a 
number of pilot schemes.  We have strengthened, via the CHST, our local response to support for Care 
Homes in early identification of, and response to, respiratory outbreaks.  Gloucestershire County 
Council Public Health are leading a pilot to improve uptake of flu vaccinations in care home staff by 
testing out two additional service models; an integrated pilot project for Point of Care Testing (PoCT) for 
seasonal influenza in care homes which aims to shorten the time from when flu is suspected to the test 
result and therefore administration of antiviral medication if indicated.  Early findings are showing a 
beneficial impact and the pilot is to be formally evaluated. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



 

12 
 

 
New Models of Care & Place Based Model 

The One Place, One Budget, One System programme takes a 
place based approach to resources and ensures we deliver best 
value. Our community care redesign will ensure responsive 
community based care is delivered through a transformative 
system approach to health and social care. 

The intention is to enable people in Gloucestershire to be more self-supporting and less dependent on 
health and social care services, living in healthy communities, benefitting from strong networks of 
community support and being able to access high quality care when needed. New locality led ‘Models of 
Care’ pilots commenced in 2016/17 to ‘test and learn’ from their implementation and outcomes, working 
across organisational boundaries, and leading to the formation of 16 locality clusters across the county. 

Key priorities for 2018/19 are 

 Led by ICS partners, pilot three Integrated Locality Partnerships in both rural and urban areas.  
The pilots will be in Stroud and Berkeley Vale, Forest of Dean and Cheltenham.  These aim to 
give more control to local GPs to develop and tailor services to best meet the needs of people in 
the local area. 

 Increase the range of roles in primary care available to support GPs and patients including the 
use expanding paramedics, clinical pharmacists and mental nurses 

 Support the roll out of the Community Dementia pilot across the county, following the completion 
of evaluation and a feasibility study. 

 We will continue to work with practices to support them through merger or federation 
conversations as required.  

 

What we’ve achieved so far: 

 Cross City Multi-Disciplinary Team (MDT) approach commenced in January 2019 following 
development and testing in North East Gloucester and South East Gloucester. Early feedback is 
that GP engagement has improved, with plans in place to further support GPs and other 
providers to take part in the MDT via a videoconferencing system.  

 A case management model is to be developed with three levels of stratification for dementia 
patients to reduce future inappropriate admissions.  

 Stroud & Berkeley Vale Dementia Working Group presented their progress to date on the phase 
two roll out of the community dementia service to the whole Locality. The new model will include 
colocation of community team staff, use of a joint clinical system & risk stratification of the 
dementia cohort to align appropriate staff; this will be tested during quarter 4 with aim for wider 
roll out at the start of 2019/20. The Dementia Working Group are working closely alongside the 
Dementia CPG who will learn from the key fundamentals of this model to develop a county 
solution. 

 Skype is being piloted in Stroud Rural & Berkeley Vale MDTs to enable easier access to the 
meeting for all members of the multi-disciplinary team 

 Implementation meetings have been held with Care homes under the Admission reduction 
project in Cheltenham. This has included introduction of the red bag scheme. The offer will be 
implemented in other homes in due course. 

 The South Cotswolds Frailty Service continues to build positive working relationships with Great 
Western Trust, GHFT, South West Ambulance Service in addition to other professionals. 

 Evaluation of the service is being undertaken by the University of Gloucestershire, gaining 
feedback from both stakeholders and patients, and a final report is due early 2019. 
 

 

 

5. One Place, One 
Budget, One System 

Page 18



 

13 
 

 
Urgent Care 

Our vision for Urgent Care will deliver the right care for patients, 
when they need it. In order to make this vision a reality and provide 
safe and sustainable services into the future, we need to consider 
how to make best use our resources, facilities and beds in hospitals 
and in the community. 

We want to improve arrangements for patients to access timely and senior clinical decision making 
about their treatment and ensure specialist support is accessed as soon as possible. We propose 
potentially changing the way some care and support is organised in Gloucestershire to meet changing 
demands, make best use of our staff, their skills and the money we have.  
 
Regular updates on the One Place Programme have been shared with HCOSC, describing how the 
programme aims to deliver an integrated urgent care system and hospital centres of excellence to 
ensure we realise the vision for urgent care. Since this update work has continued to develop the 
programme timetable, engaging with clinicians, patients, and staff and community partners to develop 
the proposals for consultation. 
 
Throughout December and January there has been careful review of the work that has taken place and 
the progress made. In particular we have received strong feedback that we need to build in more time 
for engagement in advance of formal consultation and that people want to understand the whole model. 
In response to this the ICS Delivery Board has agreed that more time is needed to focus on co-
designing options and proposals with clinicians, community partners, patients and the public before we 
move to consultation. The Communication and Engagement Strategy and Plan has been developed 
which includes clear processes from the NHS Long Term Plan (LTP) engagement through to One Place 
consultation. Further discussions around the Communication & Engagement Strategy are being held 
during the ICS Delivery Boards. 
A new scope, co-production approach, governance and timeline will be finalised shortly. In the 
meantime the current pilots within Trauma & Orthopaedic, Gastroenterology and General Surgery will 
develop as agreed. 
 
Alongside this we will progress the commissioning of a new NHS 111, Clinical Advice and Assessment 
Service. This will be informed by learning from the current ‘test and learn’ initiatives and ensuring the 
critical links with other parts of the urgent care system are maintained. 
 
The Urgent Treatment Centre test and learn project has refocused on achieving compliance with the 
NHS England national standards and agreeing priorities for implementation before Winter 2018/19. 

 

  

5. One Place, One 
Budget, One System 

Page 19



 

14 
 

 
 

Our vision is underpinned by our enabling programmes which 
are working to ensure that the system has the right capacity 
and capability to deliver on the clinical priorities. 

 

 
Joint IT Strategy – Local Digital Roadmap Patient Online has been rolled out to 96% of 
Gloucestershire practices, and currently Gloucestershire has 22.31% of patients with an online account. 
eConsultation procurements are complete for a patient triage application for primary care which will 
begin in 5 pilot practices. Wi-Fi infrastructure software upgrade has been completed; initial testing 
suggests a number of outstanding issues have been resolved as a result of this. Gloucestershire signed 
up to the South West Local Health Care Record Exemplar (LHCRE) bid and we have been told that, 
subject to a successful plan, the South West LHCRE will receive some capital funding in 2018/19. There 
are 130+ users now live on JUYI, with an average of 50 accesses per day.   

 

Joint Workforce Strategy –The first two cohorts of the ICS-wide ‘5 elements for successful leadership’ 
programme have been successfully completed and have received a highly positive evaluation.  A One 
Gloucestershire expression of interest to participate in a national High Potential Talent Scheme that was 
submitted in October was successful.  There are seven pilot sites and it will be rolled out in three 
phases.  One Gloucestershire has requested to participate in phase three; planning will commence 
around August 2019. System-wide workforce planning is progressing well supported by the 2019/20 
Operational Plan process. 

 

Joint Estates Strategy – the estates strategy is moving forwards with a number of strands of work. 
Within Primary Care, planning permission has been granted for a new Cinderford Health Centre and 
Practices within Coleford have decided to proceed to develop a new GP Led business case for a single 
site within the town. There have been Initial meetings held with Lydney and Severnbank Practices to set 
out a way forward for the potential development of a new primary and community facility aligned to 
wider Forest of Dean Community Infrastructure Programme. A new Cleevelands Medical Centre opened 
in Bishops Cleeve on January 14th. There has been agreement that organisational Estates Strategies to 
be updated and subsequent ICS strategy to be completed for March 2019 with 2031 as the planning 
timeline. The Business case programme for GHFT strategic site development in also line with plan. 

 
Primary Care Strategy – the Primary Care Strategy works alongside One Place, One Budget, One 
System to ensure we have really high quality primary care provision. Improved access has been 
successfully rolled out across all seven localities within Gloucestershire and in addition to improved 
access, clusters have been able to utilise funding to support additional workforce innovations across the 
ICS.  
 
 

  

6. Enabling 
Programmes 

Page 20



 

15 
 

 
A national announcement was made by NHS England that 
Gloucestershire in June 2018 to confirm that Gloucestershire 
was now designated as one of  only 14 Integrated Care Systems 
(ICS) across the country. 
 

 
Building on the success of the recent system visit from Don Berwick, President of the Institute for 
Healthcare Improvement (USA), the system hosted another successful visit from NHS England’s Chief 
Information Officer Will Smart. Will is responsible for providing strategic leadership across the whole of 
the NHS to ensure that the opportunities that digital technologies offer are fully exploited to improve the 
experience of patients and carers in their interactions with health and social care; the outcomes for 
patients; and improved efficiencies in how care is delivered. The key messages demonstrated during 
the visit was around; 

 Differing digital maturity amongst the partners to explore Global Digital Exemplar Fast Follower 
status; 

 A modern architecture on public cloud hosted clinical records sharing system – Joining Up Your 
Information (JUYI); and 

 Committed to Local Health Care Record Exemplar and working closely with partners to ensure 
cross border patient care is managed effectively. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

On 7th January 2019 the NHS long-term plan (formerly known as 
the 10-year plan) was published setting out key ambitions for 
health services over the next 10 years.  In June 2018, the Prime 
Minister made a commitment that the Government would 
provide more funding for the NHS for each of the next five years, 
with an average increase of 3.4% a year.  

In return, the NHS was asked to come together with wider partners to develop a long term plan for the 
future of the service, detailing our ambitions for improvement over the next decade, and our plans to 
meet them over the five years of the funding settlement. That plan has now been published. 

 
How the NHS Long Term Plan was developed 
 
Working groups made up of local and national NHS and local government 
leaders, clinical experts and representatives from patient groups and charities  
were formed to focus on specific areas where the NHS could improve over the 
next ten years. 
They then engaged extensively with stakeholders to come up with and test 
practical ideas which could be included in a plan. 
Over Autumn, working group members organised or attended over 200 events to 
hear a wide range of different views, and received over 2,500 submissions from 
individuals and groups representing the opinions and interests of 3.5 million 
people. 

 

What the NHS Long Term Plan will deliver for patients 
The working groups have developed a range of specific ideas and ambitions for how the NHS can 
improve over the next decade, covering all three life stages: 
 

• Making sure everyone gets the best start in life 
• Delivering world-class care for major health problems 
• Supporting people to age well 

 
 

7. Integrated Care 

8. NHS Long Term 
Plan (LTP) 

Page 21



 

16 
 

The diagram below show a short overview of the commitments within the plan.  One Gloucestershire 
ICS is just beginning a series of engagement events to talk to public, staff and strategic stakeholders 
about what the plan means for the development of services in Gloucestershire. There is already good 
alignment between the outcomes within the plan and our strategic direction and this is a positive 
confirmation of the journey we are on. The refresh of the system plan is a good opportunity to review 
and confirm our plans with the public and stakeholders and review “what matters” to support our 
prioritisation of objectives for the year ahead. .  

 

 
  

 
This report is provided for information and HCOSC Members are 
invited to note the contents.  
 
Mary Hutton  
ICS Lead, Gloucestershire ICS  

9. Recommendations 

Page 22



 

17 
 

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Gloucestershire Health and Care 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

CCG Performance Report 

5th March 2019

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 7



2

Report Title Gloucestershire CCG Performance report

Health and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee – March 2019

Purpose of Report The performance framework report provides the Committee with an overview of Gloucestershire CCG

performance against the ‘in year’ organisational objectives 2018/19.

A full summary of performance against all national and local standards as reported to GCCG Governing Body

is included, with supporting narrative to inform members of key system actions to support continued

performance or mitigating actions to give assurance where performance is below target or there is outlying

variation across the county.

Is this for information

or decision?

This Report is for information.

Authors Kat Doherty, Performance Manager, GCCG

Key Issues:

• 2 week wait target met for both CCG and GHFT in December 2018

• Continued good performance against agreed IAPT access, and consistent positive recovery achieved by service.

• Diagnostics continues to perform well with low numbers of patients facing long waits for tests.

• A&E performance just below STF target of 90% despite significant pressure on system throughout January.

Recommendations to the Committee:

We recommend that this report be noted.

Financial/Resource Implications:

Financial implications considered in provider contracts.

P
age 26



Contents

This document is a highlight report which is presented to give the CCG Governing Body an overview of current 

CCG and provider performance across a range of national priorities and local standards. 

Whilst inevitably this report focuses on areas of concern it should be noted that Gloucestershire is currently 

achieving the majority of the local and national performance standards. 

3

1.0 Scorecard 

2.0 Executive Summary 

2.1 System Indicators

3.0 Better Care

3.1 Performance updates 

against constitution and  key targets

P
age 27



1.0 Scorecard: CCG Performance Overview

Better Health
Good

Better Care
Requires Improvement

Leadership
Good

Sustainability
Good

CCG Improvement and 
Assessment Framework

4

P
age 28



2.1 System Indicators – Better Health (1 of 2)

This section looks at how the CCG is 

contributing towards improving the health and 

wellbeing of its population, and bending the 

demand curve.

Current CCG Performance

Period National Glos 

CCG

What is good? Trend

2.4.1 Smoking:  Maternal smoking at delivery: The 

percentage of women who were smokers at the time 

of delivery, out of the number of maternities 

Q2

18/19
10.5% 10.8% Low %

Down from last 

quarter

2.4.2 Child Obesity: Number of children in Year 6 

(aged 10-11 years) classified as overweight or 

obese in the National Child Measurement 

Programme (NCMP) attending participating state 

maintained schools in England as a proportion of all 

children measured. 

2017/

2018 34.3% 32.1% Low %
Up from last 

year

2.4.3 Diabetes:  Three (HbA1c, cholesterol and blood 

pressure) for adults and one (HbA1c) for children: 

The percentage of diabetes patients that have 

achieved all 3 of the NICE-recommended treatment 

targets – Next report due March 2019

2016/

2017
39.7% 36.4% High % No change

2.4.4 Falls: Age-sex standardised rate of emergency 

hospital admissions for injuries due to falls in 

persons aged 65+ per 100,000 population 

Indicator awaiting review – not updated

Q3

17/18
2114 1,776 Low rate No change

2.4.5 Personalisation and choice:  Indicators 

relating to utilisation of NHS e-referral service to 

enable choice at first routine elective referral.

Oct 

2018
81% 61% High %

Down from last 

month

These indicators show the latest known position from available data

5

Green

P
age 29



2.1 System Indicators – Better Health (2 of 2)

This section looks at how the CCG is 

contributing towards improving the health and 

wellbeing of its population, and bending the 

demand curve.

Current CCG Performance

Period National Glos CCG What is Good? Local Trend

2.4.6 Personal health budgets Per 100k 

population
Q1

18/19
48 57.8 High rate

Lower than Q4 

(expected due to 

methodology)

2.4.7 Percentage of deaths which take 

place in hospital
2017/

2018
45.9% 39.6% Low %

Lower than 

2016/17

2.4.8 People with a long-term condition 

feeling supported to manage their 

condition(s).

2017/

2018
59.6% 64.1% High %

Lower than 

2016/17

2.4.9 Health inequalities: Inequality in 

avoidable emergency admissions  for 

chronic ambulatory care sensitive 

conditions – indicator not updated

Q3 

17/18
1992.07 1889.33

Low rate
Indicator not 

updated – to be 

retired

2.4.10 Appropriate prescribing:
Prescribing of broad spectrum antibiotics 

in primary care (co-amoxiclav, 

cephalosporins, and quinolones as a 

percentage of total antibiotics prescribed)

12 

months 

to July 

2018

8.7% 9.3% <10% No change

2.4.11 Carers: Quality of life of carers 
Indicator methodology has been 

updated for 2018

2018 tbc 63.5% High % No data

6

Green

These indicators show the latest known position from available data

P
age 30



3.0 Performance Dashboard

78.4%

Performance
(all Gloucestershire 

patients)

2 Week 

Waits

2 Week 

Waits Breast

31 Day Waits 31 Day Waits 

Surgery 

94.4% 88.1%

31 Day Waits 

Drugs 

31 Day Waits 

Radiotherapy

62 Day GP 

Referral

62 Day 

Screening

62 Day 

Upgrade

97.0% 93.1% 100% 98.1% 72.8% 100% 70.0%

Planned Care

RTT Incomplete <18 weeks Diagnostics >6 weeks  December  18

(Gloucestershire patients)      (GHFT)             .

Diagnostics >6 weeks (YEAR TO DATE)

(Gloucestershire patients)     (GHFT).

0.6% 1.2%National Reporting Suspended

Amber

Unscheduled 

Care 

4 Hour A&E  

Jan (System)

4 Hour A&E  

YEAR TO DATE (GHFT)

Category 1 Ambulance

January 18 

(Gloucestershire) 

Category 1 Ambulance

YEAR TO DATE 

(Gloucestershire)

89.0% 90.2% 7.2 mins 7.5 mins

Delayed Transfers of 

Care (DToC)

December 18 (GHFT)

3.78%

IAPT (YEAR 

TO DATE) 

December 

2018 

Access
(target 12.39%)

Recovery
(target 50%)

12.52% 51%

GHFT 

Performance 94.3% 97.6% 93.3% 92.5% 100% 98.6% 72.2% 100% 66.7%

Cancer 

Dashboard 
(December 2018)

0.2% 0.6%

Dementia 

Diagnosis

January 

2019

Estimated Diagnosis Rate 

(Target 66.7%)

67.5%

P
age 31



3.1 System Overview Unscheduled Care

111 Call Volume 111 Disposition

Ambulance – Category 1

8

Delayed Transfers of Care

P
age 32



3.1 System Overview Unscheduled Care

System A&E 4 hr Performance

GHFT average Length of StayGCS average Length of Stay

9

GHFT A&E 4 Hour Performance

75.0%

80.0%

85.0%

90.0%

95.0%

100.0%

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

2018/19 2018/19 STF Target

A&E 4 Hour - 2017/18 to 2018/19

75.0%

80.0%

85.0%

90.0%

95.0%

100.0%

2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 STF Target

A&E 4 Hour - 2017/18 to 2018/19

P
age 33



System 4 Hour performance for

Gloucestershire was 89.0% in January

2019, just below the 90% STF target. This

includes Type III attendances at MIIUs, as

reported nationally from 30th January 2019.

GHFT performance for January was 84.5%,

however for Type 1 attendances the trust

has been performing above the above

national average of 76.1% and is ranked

33/141 trusts nationally.

Key schemes supporting Unscheduled Care:

• Acute Floor Model (AMIA).

• Frailty Assessment Service.

• Provision of advice and guidance via

Cinapsis.

• Refinement to Primary Care Streaming

model.

• IAT (Integrated Assessment Team)

• 1 hour Trop-T provision

• Complex Care at Home

• South Cotswold Frailty Service

• Mental Health Regular Attender service

3.1 Unscheduled Care – 4 hour A&E 

10

Top Line Messages:

Amber

P
age 34



3.1 Unscheduled Care – 4 hour A&E by site

11

Amber

Performance shown weekly throughout 2018/19 financial year, split by ED site and Trust wide at GHFT.  Most 

recent performance (week ending 28th October) shows GHFT achieved both the STF (90% patients treated and 

discharged/admitted within 4 hours) and national constitutional targets (95% patients treated and 

discharged/admitted within 4 hours).

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

90.0%

100.0%

Type 1 ED Performance by site YTD (Target 90%)

GHFT total

 CGH

GRH

STF target 2018/19

P
age 35



Actions and key updates:

• Acute floor is up and running, with an increase in patients admitted to AMIA to 822 in January 2019 (up from 316 in

March 2018). An increasing % of these patients are now seen and discharged within 24 hours (35.4% in April, to

74.3% in January 2019).

• Frailty assessment service - variant winter plan has been agreed to give 24/7 medical cover through to March 2019.

• IAT (Integrated Assessment Team) providing advice and guidance on alternative pathways (particularly on AMU) and

turning admissions around the ED front door. YTD have avoided 67.8% of admissions (of patients seen by service).

• Rapid Response have supported 110 more patients this year (compared to last financial year), service supporting an

increasingly frail cohort and preventing attendances and admissions to the acute. Capacity is being maximised

(missed opportunity of 5 patients/ week as service is full).

• NHS 111 call clinical validation of calls is improving – Category 2 sense checking is now live and proving to be

effective. On the 7th Jan, 45% average downgrade on all cases intercepted.

• Cinapsis is now operational, with a 21 second average response time from consultants. The service is helping to

stagger referrals in to ED, and the majority avoid same day ED attendance. The roll out county wide continues,

targeting larger practices initially.

• Hard hitting winter communications campaign launched (Stop!....Think – ‘Keep A&E clear for real emergencies)

which has so far reached 178,800 people as at January 2019 through print and online media, leaflets, pull out

banners in healthcare settings, radio advertising and social media schedules.

• Continued monitoring of flu and D&V: flu position is similar to last year in terms of numbers, however has been

mostly flu A. All 3 main providers have declared upwards of 75% vaccination rates among their staff.

• Focus on system flow: with focussed work around domiciliary care and care home availability, and provision of a

medically fit ward at CGH (in addition to Gallery Ward at GRH). Additional bed capacity has been provided in

community hospital and residential settings to support demand, in particular to support complex patient discharge.

• Additional primary care capacity in ED has been operationalised and open access appointments are available to

assist with managing demand. Further GHAC appointments have been purchased and went live on 10th February

2019.

• Mental Health regular attenders work has saved 330 attendances and 76 admissions with 40k investment YTD.

3.1 Unscheduled Care – 4 hour A&E Key Updates 

12

Amber

P
age 36



3.2 Unscheduled Care – Category 1 Ambulance 

Gloucestershire performance in Category 1 for

January was 7.2 minutes against the target of a 7

minute average response time.

The year to date position for Gloucestershire is 7.5

minutes. Performance has been relatively

consistent around the 7 minute target since August

2018.

SWAST Performance across all geographical

areas (South West) was 6.7 minutes in January,

achieving the national target (YTD performance

across South West is 7.4 minutes).

13

Top Line Messages:

Amber

P
age 37



3.2 Unscheduled Care – Category 1 Ambulance by district

14

Month Cheltenham Cotswold Forest of Dean Gloucester Stroud Tewkesbury Average

Apr-18 6.9 11.4 10.4 6.7 10.2 9.3 8.7

May-18 6.6 12.8 8.6 6.2 10.5 8.1 8.3

Jun-18 7.0 12.0 10.1 6.4 8.6 8.1 8.0

Jul-18 5.9 11.6 10.8 5.4 8.8 8.4 7.5

Aug-18 5.5 9.5 8.2 5.7 8.0 6.3 6.7

Sep-18 5.5 9.9 9.5 5.5 8.4 7.3 7.0

Oct-18 5.8 10.1 9.0 5.7 8.3 6.6 7.0

Nov-18 6.8 11.4 8.8 5.6 8.2 7.4 7.4

Dec-18 5.8 10.3 8.2 5.6 7.4 7.1 6.9

Jan-19 6.3 11.9 8.3 5.7 8.1 7.1 7.2

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18 Oct-18 Nov-18 Dec-18 Jan-19

M
in
u
t
e
s

Category 1 Response times (average)

Average

Cotswold

Forest of Dean

Stroud

Tewkesbury

Cheltenham

Gloucester

P
age 38



15

3.2 Unscheduled Care – Category 1 Ambulance 

Update on progress of Ambulance Response Programme:

• Additional clinical capacity has been put into SWAST hub to support validation of responses.

• Joint ambulance response plan will focus on: high intensity users; health professional calls,; NHS 111 – in

Gloucestershire, high intensity users will be passed to Primary Care and MDTs as part of the Find and Prevent

programme (with health coaching training being sourced for MDT workers).

• Campaign material to encourage best use of conveying capacity sent to primary care.

Updates to actions:

• iBCF funding is being used for additional capacity in Rapid Response (RR) to train care homes in direct referral

to RR. This will reduce the use of ambulance services and conveyance level to the acute trust. Training is

continuing through the winter.

• Further development of falls deployment model has been agreed with first responders. This will provide a non-

injurious falls lifting service, expected to avoid 20 unnecessary conveyances per month.

• Cinpasis advice and guidance pilot for SWAST planned for Q4 2018/19 in line with overall Cinapsis roll out plan.

• New vehicles to SWAST in Gloucestershire will be 33 new capacity to the fleet, and 30 replacement vehicles to

replace aging ambulances. Deployment of new vehicles has been put back to May to accommodate the refit

schedule.

• 111 Cat 2 call validation proposed, with governance requirements being considered by the CCG (only ever have

validated 3 and 4 before) – ambulance response rate would be expected to drop significantly.

Green

P
age 39



3.21 Unscheduled Care – Delayed Transfers of Care

16

Top Line Messages:

The GHFT DToC rate is above the 3.5% 

target for the fifth month with a rate of 

3.78% for December, however recent 

performance has improved and the rate is 

expected to be below the national target in 

January.

GCS’s DToC rate for December remained 

below target at 1%.  2Gether Trust’s DToC

rate has improved and is now below the 

3.5% threshold in Gloucestershire for 

December, with performance at 2.8%.

GHFT has significant pressure on bed 

availability currently, reflecting demand 

across the wider system; however the trust 

has not seen a rise in the number of long 

stay patients (patients with LoS >21 days) 

– meeting the national target for total bed 

days occupied by this patient group.  This 

is reflective of the focus and effort of the 

system to keep patient flow moving, in 

particular brokerage in sourcing care 

packages and placements.

Amber

P
age 40



3.3 System Overview - Planned Care:

Referral Trends Diagnostics

17

Due to the ongoing issues in relation the electronic Patient Administration System, RTT performance is not

currently being reported nationally. GHFT expect to begin reporting nationally on RTT from February 2019.

NB – eRS only includes all referral activity from 4th June 2018 (paper switch off date)

Green

P
age 41



3.4 Planned Care – Diagnostics >6 weeks

18

Both the CCG and GHFT achieved the

Diagnostic performance target in December

(GCCG at 0.6%, and GHFT at 0.2%).

There were 51 over 6 week breaches in

December 2018 of which 14 were at GHT – 10

CT, 1 Audiology Assessment, 1 peripheral

neurophysiology, 1 Flexi sigmoidoscopy, 1 Non-

obstetric ultrasound.

4 tests had performance above the 1%

threshold: Cytoscopy (GWH) (5%),

Echocardiography (UHB) (2.64%), Flexi

sigmoidoscopy (GWH) (2.16%), and

Colonoscopy (GWH/ In health) (1.8%),

GHFT has had some capacity issues recently

with CT/MRI machine failures which may put

performance at risk in January. Capital plan for

replacement of these machines is part of the

whole GHFT capital bid.

Top Line Messages:

Green

P
age 42



3.5 System Overview Cancer: YTD December 2018

2WW (GP Ref’d) 2WW (Breast)

19

Green

P
age 43



3.5 System Overview Cancer: YTD December 2018

31 day 31 day subsequent treatm’t: Surgery

20

31 day subsequent treatm’t: Drugs 31 day subsequent treatm’t: Radiotherapy

Green

P
age 44



3.5 System Overview Cancer: YTD December 2018

62 day: Consultant Upgrade

62 day: GP referral 62 day: Screening

21

Red

P
age 45



3.6 Cancer – 2 week waits

December performance has met the 2ww target

(for 93% of patients to be seen within 2 weeks of

a suspected cancer referral) for the first time this

financial year for both GCCG patients and GHFT

with CCG performance at 94.4% and GHFT

performance at 94.3%.

There were 101 breaches of which the main

areas of concern are Gynaecology (28 breaches

– 81.6%) and Sarcoma (1 breach – 85.7%).

While below the target, Gynaecology

performance is much improved on the previous

month position of 54.8%. Lower GI performance

remained below the target at 89.8%; however the

specialty had particularly high patient choice

breaches over the Christmas period which

adversely affected performance.

22

Top Line Messages:

Amber

P
age 46



3.7 Cancer – 62 days 

December performance against the 62 day

treatment standard was 72.8% for GCCG and

72.2% for GHFT.

There were 43 breaches which were in the

following specialties: 1 in Breast (94.4%), 3 in

Gynaecology (66.7%), 3 in Haematology

(50.0%), 3 in Head & Neck (40.0%), 4 in Lower

GI (76.5%), 2 in Lung (75.0%), 2 Other (0.0%),

1 in Skin (97.4%), 3 in Upper GI (72.7%), and

21 in Urology (48.8%).

Performance excluding urology leads to an

adjusted figure of 81.2% for all GCCG patients

and 80.3% for GHFT patients in December.

Despite significant pressure on bed capacity,

leading to some elective surgery cancellations,

no cancer surgery has yet had to be cancelled.

104 day breaches:

There were 13 104 day breaches for

Gloucestershire patients reported in December

2018, all first seen GHFT. 10 of these patients

were Urology patients, 1 Upper GI patient, 1

Gynaecology patient, and 1 Haematological

patient.

23

Top Line Messages:

Red

P
age 47



3.7 Cancer – Programme Actions

24

Actions supporting improvements to time to first appointments and treatment:

• Review and development of 2ww pathways (especially gynaecology, dermatology, sarcoma).

• MDT coordinators to be sited in one office (NHSI recommendation) has been agreed and scheduled

for April 2019.

• NHS Elect workshop to be scheduled in this year to focus on tertiary referrals.

• NHS Elect deep dive session to be scheduled in this year to focus on one specialty.

• All patients reviewed weekly from Day 26 (larger specialties) and Day 15 (smaller specialties) –

brought forward from Day 28 across the board to assist with timely treatment.

• Additional focus on Urology being considered by GHFT and NHSI; a proposal is being worked up to

allow GHFT to be a regional leader in this specialty.

• Focus continues on 2ww referral quality and improvement opportunities through the cancer CPG

project. The CCG is investigating how to work with specific practices over patient choice breaches.

Amber

P
age 48



3.8 System Overview: Mental Health - IAPT

Access Recovery

Referral to Treatment - 6 wks Referral to Treatment - 18 wks

25

Green

P
age 49



3.8 Mental Health - IAPT

Top Line Messages:

Current IAPT performance is on target to

achieve the recovery and access targets

for the full year. At the end of month 9

(December), the YTD access was 12.58%

(cumulative) against a target of 12.39% to

achieve 17% by the end of the year.

Recovery performance has been excellent

throughout the year, with the 50% target

being met in each month. December

performance was 51% and YTD

performance is 52% patients moving to

recovery following intervention by an IAPT

service.

The national expectation is that 22% of

patients will be accessing IAPT services by

the end of the 2019/20 financial year. To

reach this target, 2G will need to expand

their service to include long term

conditions. A business case to provide this

service is currently going through

prioritisation for next year. If this service

expansion is not funded it is likely that the

IAPT target will have to be held at 19%.

26

Green

P
age 50



3.8 System Overview: Mental Health – Children & Young People

27

CYPS services RTT continues to be well below the average performance of 2017/18 (76% seen within 10 weeks), with

46% of CYPs accessing services within 10 weeks in Q3 of 2018/19.

Gloucestershire will be taking part in a national trailblazer pilot to offer access to mental health support teams (new

service), as well as improving the RTT for CYPS accessing mental health services in an ambitious 4 week wait pilot. This

will allow the implementation of a gradual improvement in waiting times over 18/19 and 19/20 to a sustainable position by

the end of April 2020 where:

• 100% have initial access appointment within 2 weeks.

• 50% of CYP have access and have a second appointment within 4 weeks.

• 100% of CYP have access and a second appointment within 6 weeks

Amber

2018/19 April May June/Q1 July August
September

/Q2
October November

December

/Q3

Children and young people who enter a 

treatment programme to have a care 

coordinator - (Level 3 Services) Target : 

98%

99% 99% 99% 99% 99% 99% 99% 98% 98%

95% accepted referrals receiving initial 

appointment within 4 weeks (excludes 

YOS, substance misuse, inpatient and 

crisis/home treatment and complex 

engagement) (CYPS) - Target 95%

96% 95% 96%

Level 2 and 3 – Referral to treatment 

within 8 weeks , excludes LD, YOS, 

inpatient and crisis/home treatment) 

(CYPS) - Target 80%

39% 43% 40%

Level 2 and 3 – Referral to treatment 

within 10 weeks (excludes LD, YOS, 

inpatient and crisis/home treatment) 

(CYPS) - Target 95%

45% 57% 46%

Children and Young People's Mental Health (CYPS)

P
age 51



3.9 Continuing Health Care – Location of assessment

Top Line Messages:

28

NHS Continuing Healthcare (CHC) has

national targets to ensure that the majority of

referrals take place promptly and in an

appropriate setting.

The 28 day referral time starts from the date

the CCG receives any type of recorded

decision that full consideration for NHS CHC

is required i.e. a positive checklist or other

notification of potential eligibility and ends at

the point the CCG makes the decision. The

location of assessment considers whether

the assessment was carried out in an acute

setting - which may not be appropriate due

to a lack of clarity over a person's long term

needs.

The Discharge to Assess pathway

commenced on the 9th May 2016 and now

only in exceptional circumstances does a

CHC checklist and full assessment take

place in an acute hospital setting within

Gloucestershire as shown by the consistent

performance YTD in 2018/19.

Green

P
age 52



29

3.9 Continuing Health Care

CHC Assessments completed in 28 days (slide 1 of 2)

Top Line Messages:

Current performance is below the 80% 

target at for assessments to be carried out 

in 28 days (42% of assessments were 

carried out in this timeframe in January 

2019).  However, this is the highest monthly 

performance achieved this financial year.

National comparison data is collected 

quarterly – GCCG performance in Q1 was 

35%, Q2 was 34% and Q3 was 28% 

(assessments completed within 28 days).  

This shows an improved and more 

consistent performance to the 2017/18 

financial year.

Red

P
age 53



Progress against the action plan to date:

• January performance has improved to 42% of assessments completed within 28 days, which is the highest this 

financial year, and a significant improvement on the 28% average of Q3.  

• The internal target to meet the 50% regional average has been reset to be achieved by end of Q4; the team is 

undergoing some restructuring in order to improve efficiency and are optimistic that the 50% target will be met in 

Q4. 

• Agency nurses recruited to help with backlog of cases will remain in post until 31/03/2018.  A new LD nurse has 

been appointed.

• Positive checklists are now screened to ensure concerns are raised early with referrers.  

• Joint training continues to be carried out with the LA and a greater emphasis will be placed on the 28 day time 

frame.

Learning Disability (LD) assessments and reviews:

• There were 28 outstanding LD reviews (cases which had not been reviewed for more than 6 years).  This has 

now been reduced to 11as of 31st January 2019 with a trajectory to clear the backlog of outstanding reviews by 

March 2019.

• The backlog of LD assessments waiting more than 12 weeks for initial assessment  has been reduced to a total 

of just 3 as of 31st January 2019 (down from a high point of 91 last June).

30

3.9 Continuing Health Care
CHC Assessments completed in 28 days (slide 2 of 2)

Red

P
age 54



Positive Trends in December

Delayed Transfers of Care – Community hospital DTOC rate remains below the national target of 3.5% at 1.0% in 

December and a YTD performance of 1.4%.

MIIU – performance continues to be above the national target of 95% patients seen and discharged within 4 hours 

at 98.9%. The YTD average is 99.2%.

SPCA – The answering of priority 1 & 2 within 60 seconds continues to exceed the 95% target with a performance 

of 98.5%. This has now met the target for the last 6 months and is a considerable increase from the 17/18 YTD 

performance of 90.4%.  Abandoned calls have also significantly reduced to under 1%.

Children’s services RTT -

Both SALT and OT continue to meet the children’s RTT target despite challenges in meeting the 8 week target for 

all referrals.  Paediatric physiotherapy just missed the 95% RTT target to be seen within 8 weeks of referral in 

December 2018.

31

3.10 Gloucestershire Care Services Performance 

Target 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95%

Actual 97.7% 94.9% 99.5% 95.6% 95.4% 100.0% 96.3% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Target 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95%

Actual 99.0% 96.9% 99.1% 97.4% 93.2% 80.0% 88.5% 95.5% 91.9% 94.6%

Target 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95%

Actual 96.6% 97.6% 98.6% 96.4% 98.5% 97.2% 95.1% 94.0% 95.3% 95.3%
Paediatric Occupational Therapy - % treated within 8 Weeks

Paediatric Speech and Language Therapy - % treated 

within 8 Weeks

Paediatric Physiotherapy - % treated within 8 Weeks

2017/18 

Outturn
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

P
age 55



Referral To Treatment in community services (December key issues)

Speech and Language Therapy (SALT) and Occupational Therapy (OT) continue to be well below the performance 

threshold for referral to treatment waits; the OT service is currently being developed to address staffing and capacity 

issues.  GCS runs the provision of SALT across the acute and community which has led to challenges in ensuring the 

community service is robustly staffed – GCS are working with GHFT to better understand the balance of work and 

associated resourcing required.  GHFT has recently recruited additional SALT staff into the stroke team which will 

reduce pressure on the generic SALT service.  ICT Physiotherapy is also performing below target; commissioners are 

working closely with GCS to improve these services, including via Clinical Programme Groups, performance and 

information groups and contractual levers.

• Diabetes Nursing performance has maintained improved performance in Q3, and 100% of patients were seen 

within 8 weeks of referral in December.
32

3.10 Gloucestershire Care Services Performance 

Target 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95%

Actual 84.4% 60.7% 59.5% 57.1% 59.8% 46.8% 50.8% 41.7% 52.3% 57.4%

Target 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95%

Actual 92.8% 97.5% 98.4% 98.6% 98.6% 95.6% 94.7% 95.6% 98.2% 98.7%

Target 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95%

Actual 82.7% 77.4% 70.1% 76.8% 73.1% 69.3% 63.2% 69.6% 75.8% 83.3%

Target 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95%

Actual 90.7% 91.4% 90.6% 85.7% 90.1% 89.5% 89.0% 93.1% 96.7% 95.7%

Target 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95%

Actual 85.4% 84.3% 84.5% 81.1% 79.6% 86.6% 80.3% 81.8% 88.9% 88.0%

Target 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 95%

Actual 96.2% 94.5% 85.5% 97.6% 87.8% 90.7% 90.3% 97.6% 97.1% 100.0%
Diabetes Nursing - % treated within 8 Weeks

Speech and Language Therapy (GCS activity) - % treated 

within 8 Weeks

Occupational Therapy Services - % treated within 8 Weeks

MSK Physiotherapy - % treated within 8 Weeks

ICT Physiotherapy - % treated within 8 Weeks

Podiatry - % treated within 8 Weeks

2017/18 

Outturn
Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

P
age 56



33

3.11 Performance – Regional Comparison February 2019

86.00%

87.00%

88.00%

89.00%

90.00%

91.00%

92.00%

93.00%

RTT Incomplete (HIGH = GOOD)

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%
Diagnostics % (LOW = GOOD)

65.00%

70.00%

75.00%

80.00%

85.00%

90.00%

95.00%

100.00%

Cancer 2 week wait (HIGH = GOOD)

65.00%

70.00%

75.00%

80.00%

85.00%

90.00%

Cancer 62 day GP Ref (HIGH = GOOD)

42.00%

44.00%

46.00%

48.00%

50.00%

52.00%

54.00%

56.00%

IAPT Recovery (Nov-18) (HIGH = GOOD)

P
age 57



3.12 Performance – Patient Experience

34

National Review of FFT

Ipsos MORI have carried out a review of the national FFT, to which GCCG has contributed.

New guidance around the test is expected in April 2019.

ICS quality report is now being developed for system assurance in 2019/20.

Organisation Service

Response 

rate

% 

recommend

% not 

recommend

National 

response rate

National % 

recommend

National % not 

recommend

change to 

last month*

GHFT A&E 18.2% 81.0% 12.5% 12.1% 86% 8%worse

GHFT Outpatient 12.5% 92.9% 3.2% NA 94% 3%similar

GHFT Inpatient 24.8% 91.5% 4.1% 22% 96% 2%similar

Primary Care GP practices NA 91.2% 5.4% NA 90% 6%similar

GCS Community 15.3% 94.7% 1.8% NA 95% 2%better

2G Mental Health NA 79.1% 10.5% NA 89% 4%similar

FFT December 2018

*over 1% difference to previous month

Amber

P
age 58



Health & Care Overview & Scrutiny Scorecard
Quarter 3 Reporting 2018/19

The following scorecards are enclosed:

This report has been prepared by the Performance & Improvement Team using data up to 31/12/2018

Page No.
Key to Symbols 2
Adult Social Care Performance 3
Strategic Risk Register Summary 6

1

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 8

javascript:app.OpenBookmark(1,2243,true,null,null,false,'','');


Risk Impact/Consequence

Likelihood 1
Insignificant

2
Minor

3
Moderate

4
Major

5
Critical

Almost
certain
(5)

5 10 15 20 25

Likely
(4) 4 8 12 16 20

Probable
(3) 3 6 9 12 15

Possible
(2) 2 4 6 8 10

Rare
(1) 1 2 3 4 5

Level of
Risk

Score

Low 1  6
Moderate 7 – 12
High 13 – 25

Performance better than tolerance

Performance within tolerance

Performance worse than tolerance

No information

Missing target

No value

Value Increasing (Smaller is Better)

Value Decreasing (Smaller is Better)

Value Increasing (Bigger is Better)

Value Decreasing (Bigger is Better)

No change

Bigger is better A bigger value for this measure is good

Smaller is
better

A smaller value for this measure is good

Plan is best Where it is best for performance to be on target rather than above or below

Reporting Basis

Year to Date Performance accumulated over the year

Rolling Year Average performance over a 12 month
period

Annual Performance measured once a year

Latest
Quarter

Performance this quarter

Snapshot Performance at a particular point in time

Forecast Predicted position at the end of the year

Key to Symbols

Key to Symbols  Risk

Risk Rating
(calculated by multiplying the Impact with

the Likelihood of each risk)

The Gloucestershire Risk Matrix

2

P
age 60



Adult Social Care Performance

Selfdirected Support

Cllr Kathy Williams
Cllr Roger Wilson

ASCOF 1C pt1 Social care clients receiving self
directed support

Bigger is Better Snapshot 82.7 % 96.9 % 96.4 % 95.9 % 94.3 % 93.4 % 90.0 %

ASCOF 1C pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 94.8 % 94.6 % 97.7 % 98.6 % 100.0 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.9 % 99.8 % 99.9 % 100.0 % 100.0 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 94.7 % 93.9 % 92.6 % 89.0 % 87.0 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 97.9 % 97.5 % 97.0 % 96.5 % 95.4 %

ASCOF 1C pt2 People in receipt of direct payments Bigger is Better Snapshot 30.3 % 21.5 % 20.1 % 19.5 % 18.5 % 18.0 % 32.0 %

DP's are currently reducing gradually as they are cancelled
by service users or by us when they are no longer an
appropriate way of meeting people's needs. It has been
confirmed by the Service that we are no longer chasing DP
figures per se as a priority unless a DP is the best value
option or the preferred option because it delivers added
value to either the SU or the council.

ASCOF 1C pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 19.2 % 16.0 % 17.4 % 15.5 % 13.3 %
ASCOF 1C Pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 17.1 % 16.8 % 17.0 % 17.0 % 16.9 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 15.7 % 14.1 % 13.6 % 12.3 % 11.9 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 42.8 % 41.4 % 39.5 % 38.6 % 37.5 %

ASCOF 1C(1B): Proportion of carers receiving selfdirected
support

Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 % 14.2 % 23.2 %

ASCOF 1C(2B): Proportion of carers receiving direct payments
for support direct to carer.

Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 % 13.7 % 8.8 %

LPIAS323 % of carers with flexible budgets (following
assessment) Bigger is Better Annual 48.0 % 43.4 % 12.2 % 3.5 %

The reduction in carers flexible budgets has resulted from two
key factors. 1) The impact of introducing FACE assessments and
a GCC decision panel as part of the Care Act. 2) A time lag
between assessments being completed and budgets awarded
meant that some decisions were delayed beyond 17/18
timescale.
Commissioners are working closely with the Provider to renew
the current 'carers offer', to ensure we maximise the efficiency
and effectiveness of these services and that people who would
benefit from a flexible budget are able to apply for one in a
timely manner.

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Target Dec18 Comments Dec18

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Target Dec18 Comments Dec18

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Comments 2017/18

Employment & Settled Accommodation

LPIAS322 Adults with learning disabilities in
employment (Local Definition)

Bigger is Better Monthly n/a 18.5 % 19.3 % 19.7 % 19.7 % 20.4 % 15.0 %

ASCOF 1F Adults (aged 1869) receiving secondary
mental health services in employment

Bigger is Better Quarterly 9.4 % 17.0 % 16.0 % 18.0 % 16.0 % 16.0 % 13.0 %

ASCOF 1H Adults (18  69) contact with secondary
mental health services in settled accommodation

Bigger is Better Quarterly 55.0 % 88.0 % 96.0 % 87.0 % 87.0 % 87.0 % 80.0 %

ASCOF 1G Adults with learning disabilities in settled
accommodation

Bigger is Better Monthly 73.3 % 76.7 % 76.6 % 76.7 % 77.0 % 77.2 % 75.0 %

ASCOF 1E Adults with Learning Disabilities in Employment Bigger is Better Annual 6.5 % 8.7 % 6.8 % 6.4 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Target Dec
18

Comments Dec18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Comments

Reablement & Preventative

BOC1 Number of Reablement/Enablement Services Bigger is Better Snapshot 359 339 369 365 328
BOC5 Number of Other care services (i.e Preventative) Bigger is Better Snapshot 465 495 476 462 351

ASCOF 2B pt1 Proportion of older people
still at home 91 days after discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 82.1 % 74.7 % 81.4 % 81.8 % 79.5 %

ASCOF 2B pt2 Proportion of people aged
65+ offered reablement services after
hospital discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 2.2 % 3.0 % 3.4 % 2.9 % 2.2 %

ASCOF 2D % of new clients receiving a
lower level or no ongoing support after a
short term service

Bigger is Better Annual 82.8 % 90.2 % 89.2 % 90.1 % 89.6 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 17/18

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Comments 2017/18

Admissions & Transfers

ASCOF 2A pt1 Permanent admissions 1864 to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop Smaller is Better Rolling Year 15.20 10.62 9.80 11.98 14.10 14.64 12.00

We are currently investigating the latest change in
performance and a further report will be provided for
quarter four

ASCOF 2A pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 1.36 0.82 1.36 1.90 1.63
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 2.45 1.91 2.72 2.71 3.52
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 6.81 7.08 7.90 9.49 9.49

ASCOF 2A pt2 Permanent admissions aged 65+ to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 555.90 492.97 514.57 513.03 485.58 434.15 550.00

ASCOF 2A pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.76 1.51
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 3.09 3.09 3.86 4.54 3.03
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Older People Smaller is Better Rolling Year 489.88 511.48 509.17 480.29 429.61

ASCOF 2C pt 2 Delayed transfers of care from hospital
due to Adult Social Care per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 5.50 4.07 4.32 4.61 4.39 4.19

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Target Dec18 Comments Dec18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Target Dec18 Comments Dec18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (In Arrears)
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Long Term Care

LCT1 Total number of Community Care Clients Plan is Best Snapshot 3,296 3,331 3,339 3,292 3,081
LCT2 Total number of Residential Care Clients Smaller is Better Snapshot 1,355 1,289 1,310 1,309 1,268
LCT3 Total number of Nursing Care Clients Smaller is Better Snapshot 647 621 637 633 625
ASC16a % of service users who have been asked at their last
assessment whether they have carer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.7 %

ASC16b % of carers identified who were then offered a carers
assessment

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC16c % of carers offered a carers assessment who accepted the
offer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC1% of ongoing service users who have had a full reassessment of
their needs in the last 12months

Bigger is Better Snapshot 77.3 % 75.2 % 70.7 % 65.4 % 59.3 % 80.0 %

Validation work and data cleansing is currently underway.
Concentration has been on Non Care act assessments.
Activity is being monitored and localities will be asked to
offer a reassessment plan.

ASC1b  2Gether Bigger is Better Snapshot 97.2 % 95.4 % 96.7 % 96.8 % 97.5 % 95.0 %

ASC1b  LD Bigger is Better Snapshot 89.9 % 86.5 % 81.5 % 75.5 % 69.8 % 80.0 %

ASC1b  OP Bigger is Better Snapshot 67.0 % 65.2 % 60.7 % 54.9 % 47.8 % 70.0 %

ASC1b  PD Bigger is Better Snapshot 75.0 % 72.2 % 68.4 % 63.3 % 55.5 % 80.0 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Target Dec18 Comments Dec18

Safeguarding Adults

CDS SAR01 No. of Safeguarding adults concerns raised Bigger is Better Year to Date 346 425 528 524 490
GSAB1a Total  Advice Line Calls Bigger is Better Year to Date 842 954 1,181 1,061 950
CDS SAR02 No. of concerns that led to a safeguarding (S42) Care Act
enquiry

Smaller is Better Year to Date 153 192 313 255 224

GSAB5a % of total concerns leading to Section 42 enquiries Smaller is Better Year to Date 44.2 % 45.2 % 59.3 % 48.7 % 45.7 %
GSAB6a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk was
removed

Bigger is Better Year to Date 29.0 % 40.0 % 45.8 % 37.8 % 43.4 %

GSAB7a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk was
reduced

Bigger is Better Year to Date 50.0 % 43.0 % 41.9 % 43.6 % 45.1 %

GSAB8a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk
remains

Smaller is Better Year to Date 11.0 % 12.0 % 11.8 % 15.4 % 11.5 %

GSAB8b % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where no risk
identified

Bigger is Better Year to Date 10.0 % 5.0 % 0.5 % 3.3 % 0.0 %

GSAB8c % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk not
recorded

Bigger is Better Year to Date 0.4 % 0.8 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

Annual Survey

ASCOF 1A Social care reported quality of life Bigger is Better Annual 19.2 19.3 19.4 19.7 19.1
ASCOF 1B The proportion of those using services who
have control over their daily lives

Bigger is Better Annual 78.1 % 78.0 % 79.2 % 81.9 % 77.5 %

ASCOF 1I1 % of people who use services reporting they
had as much social contact as they would like

Bigger is Better Annual 46.3 % 47.2 % 48.2 % 52.8 % 49.2 %

ASCOF 3A Overall satisfaction of people who use services Bigger is Better Annual 66.4 % 66.9 % 65.7 % 69.0 % 63.5 %
ASCOF 3D1 The proportion of people who find it easy to
find information about services

Bigger is Better Annual 72.8 % 77.3 % 77.3 % 80.1 % 74.4 %

ASCOF 4A Proportion of people who use services who feel
safe

Bigger is Better Annual 71.0 % 67.7 % 71.4 % 75.0 % 70.9 %

ASCOF 4B Proportion of people using services saying
those services have made them feel safe & secure

Bigger is Better Annual 86.6 % 90.9 % 91.1 % 93.4 % 91.7 %

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 17/18

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Comments 2017/18

3

P
age 61

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col17')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B2','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col6')


Adult Social Care Performance

Selfdirected Support

Cllr Kathy Williams
Cllr Roger Wilson

ASCOF 1C pt1 Social care clients receiving self
directed support

Bigger is Better Snapshot 82.7 % 96.9 % 96.4 % 95.9 % 94.3 % 93.4 % 90.0 %

ASCOF 1C pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 94.8 % 94.6 % 97.7 % 98.6 % 100.0 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.9 % 99.8 % 99.9 % 100.0 % 100.0 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 94.7 % 93.9 % 92.6 % 89.0 % 87.0 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 97.9 % 97.5 % 97.0 % 96.5 % 95.4 %

ASCOF 1C pt2 People in receipt of direct payments Bigger is Better Snapshot 30.3 % 21.5 % 20.1 % 19.5 % 18.5 % 18.0 % 32.0 %

DP's are currently reducing gradually as they are cancelled
by service users or by us when they are no longer an
appropriate way of meeting people's needs. It has been
confirmed by the Service that we are no longer chasing DP
figures per se as a priority unless a DP is the best value
option or the preferred option because it delivers added
value to either the SU or the council.

ASCOF 1C pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 19.2 % 16.0 % 17.4 % 15.5 % 13.3 %
ASCOF 1C Pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 17.1 % 16.8 % 17.0 % 17.0 % 16.9 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 15.7 % 14.1 % 13.6 % 12.3 % 11.9 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 42.8 % 41.4 % 39.5 % 38.6 % 37.5 %

ASCOF 1C(1B): Proportion of carers receiving selfdirected
support

Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 % 14.2 % 23.2 %

ASCOF 1C(2B): Proportion of carers receiving direct payments
for support direct to carer.

Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 % 13.7 % 8.8 %

LPIAS323 % of carers with flexible budgets (following
assessment) Bigger is Better Annual 48.0 % 43.4 % 12.2 % 3.5 %

The reduction in carers flexible budgets has resulted from two
key factors. 1) The impact of introducing FACE assessments and
a GCC decision panel as part of the Care Act. 2) A time lag
between assessments being completed and budgets awarded
meant that some decisions were delayed beyond 17/18
timescale.
Commissioners are working closely with the Provider to renew
the current 'carers offer', to ensure we maximise the efficiency
and effectiveness of these services and that people who would
benefit from a flexible budget are able to apply for one in a
timely manner.

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Target Dec18 Comments Dec18

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Target Dec18 Comments Dec18

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Comments 2017/18

Employment & Settled Accommodation

LPIAS322 Adults with learning disabilities in
employment (Local Definition)

Bigger is Better Monthly n/a 18.5 % 19.3 % 19.7 % 19.7 % 20.4 % 15.0 %

ASCOF 1F Adults (aged 1869) receiving secondary
mental health services in employment

Bigger is Better Quarterly 9.4 % 17.0 % 16.0 % 18.0 % 16.0 % 16.0 % 13.0 %

ASCOF 1H Adults (18  69) contact with secondary
mental health services in settled accommodation

Bigger is Better Quarterly 55.0 % 88.0 % 96.0 % 87.0 % 87.0 % 87.0 % 80.0 %

ASCOF 1G Adults with learning disabilities in settled
accommodation

Bigger is Better Monthly 73.3 % 76.7 % 76.6 % 76.7 % 77.0 % 77.2 % 75.0 %

ASCOF 1E Adults with Learning Disabilities in Employment Bigger is Better Annual 6.5 % 8.7 % 6.8 % 6.4 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Target Dec
18

Comments Dec18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Comments

Reablement & Preventative

BOC1 Number of Reablement/Enablement Services Bigger is Better Snapshot 359 339 369 365 328
BOC5 Number of Other care services (i.e Preventative) Bigger is Better Snapshot 465 495 476 462 351

ASCOF 2B pt1 Proportion of older people
still at home 91 days after discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 82.1 % 74.7 % 81.4 % 81.8 % 79.5 %

ASCOF 2B pt2 Proportion of people aged
65+ offered reablement services after
hospital discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 2.2 % 3.0 % 3.4 % 2.9 % 2.2 %

ASCOF 2D % of new clients receiving a
lower level or no ongoing support after a
short term service

Bigger is Better Annual 82.8 % 90.2 % 89.2 % 90.1 % 89.6 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 17/18

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Comments 2017/18

Admissions & Transfers

ASCOF 2A pt1 Permanent admissions 1864 to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop Smaller is Better Rolling Year 15.20 10.62 9.80 11.98 14.10 14.64 12.00

We are currently investigating the latest change in
performance and a further report will be provided for
quarter four

ASCOF 2A pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 1.36 0.82 1.36 1.90 1.63
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 2.45 1.91 2.72 2.71 3.52
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 6.81 7.08 7.90 9.49 9.49

ASCOF 2A pt2 Permanent admissions aged 65+ to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 555.90 492.97 514.57 513.03 485.58 434.15 550.00

ASCOF 2A pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.76 1.51
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 3.09 3.09 3.86 4.54 3.03
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Older People Smaller is Better Rolling Year 489.88 511.48 509.17 480.29 429.61

ASCOF 2C pt 2 Delayed transfers of care from hospital
due to Adult Social Care per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 5.50 4.07 4.32 4.61 4.39 4.19

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Target Dec18 Comments Dec18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Target Dec18 Comments Dec18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (In Arrears)
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Long Term Care

LCT1 Total number of Community Care Clients Plan is Best Snapshot 3,296 3,331 3,339 3,292 3,081
LCT2 Total number of Residential Care Clients Smaller is Better Snapshot 1,355 1,289 1,310 1,309 1,268
LCT3 Total number of Nursing Care Clients Smaller is Better Snapshot 647 621 637 633 625
ASC16a % of service users who have been asked at their last
assessment whether they have carer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.7 %

ASC16b % of carers identified who were then offered a carers
assessment

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC16c % of carers offered a carers assessment who accepted the
offer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC1% of ongoing service users who have had a full reassessment of
their needs in the last 12months

Bigger is Better Snapshot 77.3 % 75.2 % 70.7 % 65.4 % 59.3 % 80.0 %

Validation work and data cleansing is currently underway.
Concentration has been on Non Care act assessments.
Activity is being monitored and localities will be asked to
offer a reassessment plan.

ASC1b  2Gether Bigger is Better Snapshot 97.2 % 95.4 % 96.7 % 96.8 % 97.5 % 95.0 %

ASC1b  LD Bigger is Better Snapshot 89.9 % 86.5 % 81.5 % 75.5 % 69.8 % 80.0 %

ASC1b  OP Bigger is Better Snapshot 67.0 % 65.2 % 60.7 % 54.9 % 47.8 % 70.0 %

ASC1b  PD Bigger is Better Snapshot 75.0 % 72.2 % 68.4 % 63.3 % 55.5 % 80.0 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Target Dec18 Comments Dec18

Safeguarding Adults

CDS SAR01 No. of Safeguarding adults concerns raised Bigger is Better Year to Date 346 425 528 524 490
GSAB1a Total  Advice Line Calls Bigger is Better Year to Date 842 954 1,181 1,061 950
CDS SAR02 No. of concerns that led to a safeguarding (S42) Care Act
enquiry

Smaller is Better Year to Date 153 192 313 255 224

GSAB5a % of total concerns leading to Section 42 enquiries Smaller is Better Year to Date 44.2 % 45.2 % 59.3 % 48.7 % 45.7 %
GSAB6a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk was
removed

Bigger is Better Year to Date 29.0 % 40.0 % 45.8 % 37.8 % 43.4 %

GSAB7a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk was
reduced

Bigger is Better Year to Date 50.0 % 43.0 % 41.9 % 43.6 % 45.1 %

GSAB8a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk
remains

Smaller is Better Year to Date 11.0 % 12.0 % 11.8 % 15.4 % 11.5 %

GSAB8b % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where no risk
identified

Bigger is Better Year to Date 10.0 % 5.0 % 0.5 % 3.3 % 0.0 %

GSAB8c % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk not
recorded

Bigger is Better Year to Date 0.4 % 0.8 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

Annual Survey

ASCOF 1A Social care reported quality of life Bigger is Better Annual 19.2 19.3 19.4 19.7 19.1
ASCOF 1B The proportion of those using services who
have control over their daily lives

Bigger is Better Annual 78.1 % 78.0 % 79.2 % 81.9 % 77.5 %

ASCOF 1I1 % of people who use services reporting they
had as much social contact as they would like

Bigger is Better Annual 46.3 % 47.2 % 48.2 % 52.8 % 49.2 %

ASCOF 3A Overall satisfaction of people who use services Bigger is Better Annual 66.4 % 66.9 % 65.7 % 69.0 % 63.5 %
ASCOF 3D1 The proportion of people who find it easy to
find information about services

Bigger is Better Annual 72.8 % 77.3 % 77.3 % 80.1 % 74.4 %

ASCOF 4A Proportion of people who use services who feel
safe

Bigger is Better Annual 71.0 % 67.7 % 71.4 % 75.0 % 70.9 %

ASCOF 4B Proportion of people using services saying
those services have made them feel safe & secure

Bigger is Better Annual 86.6 % 90.9 % 91.1 % 93.4 % 91.7 %

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 17/18

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Comments 2017/18

4

P
age 62

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A2','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col17')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A3','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B3','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col19')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col20')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col21')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col22')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col23')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col24')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col25')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col26')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col29')


Adult Social Care Performance

Selfdirected Support

Cllr Kathy Williams
Cllr Roger Wilson

ASCOF 1C pt1 Social care clients receiving self
directed support

Bigger is Better Snapshot 82.7 % 96.9 % 96.4 % 95.9 % 94.3 % 93.4 % 90.0 %

ASCOF 1C pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 94.8 % 94.6 % 97.7 % 98.6 % 100.0 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.9 % 99.8 % 99.9 % 100.0 % 100.0 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 94.7 % 93.9 % 92.6 % 89.0 % 87.0 %
ASCOF 1C pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 97.9 % 97.5 % 97.0 % 96.5 % 95.4 %

ASCOF 1C pt2 People in receipt of direct payments Bigger is Better Snapshot 30.3 % 21.5 % 20.1 % 19.5 % 18.5 % 18.0 % 32.0 %

DP's are currently reducing gradually as they are cancelled
by service users or by us when they are no longer an
appropriate way of meeting people's needs. It has been
confirmed by the Service that we are no longer chasing DP
figures per se as a priority unless a DP is the best value
option or the preferred option because it delivers added
value to either the SU or the council.

ASCOF 1C pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Bigger is Better Snapshot 19.2 % 16.0 % 17.4 % 15.5 % 13.3 %
ASCOF 1C Pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 17.1 % 16.8 % 17.0 % 17.0 % 16.9 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Older People Bigger is Better Snapshot 15.7 % 14.1 % 13.6 % 12.3 % 11.9 %
ASCOF 1C pt2  GCC Physical Disabilities Bigger is Better Snapshot 42.8 % 41.4 % 39.5 % 38.6 % 37.5 %

ASCOF 1C(1B): Proportion of carers receiving selfdirected
support

Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 % 14.2 % 23.2 %

ASCOF 1C(2B): Proportion of carers receiving direct payments
for support direct to carer.

Bigger is Better Annual 10.2 % 13.7 % 8.8 %

LPIAS323 % of carers with flexible budgets (following
assessment) Bigger is Better Annual 48.0 % 43.4 % 12.2 % 3.5 %

The reduction in carers flexible budgets has resulted from two
key factors. 1) The impact of introducing FACE assessments and
a GCC decision panel as part of the Care Act. 2) A time lag
between assessments being completed and budgets awarded
meant that some decisions were delayed beyond 17/18
timescale.
Commissioners are working closely with the Provider to renew
the current 'carers offer', to ensure we maximise the efficiency
and effectiveness of these services and that people who would
benefit from a flexible budget are able to apply for one in a
timely manner.

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Target Dec18 Comments Dec18

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Target Dec18 Comments Dec18

By Provider  Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting Basis Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Comments 2017/18

Employment & Settled Accommodation

LPIAS322 Adults with learning disabilities in
employment (Local Definition)

Bigger is Better Monthly n/a 18.5 % 19.3 % 19.7 % 19.7 % 20.4 % 15.0 %

ASCOF 1F Adults (aged 1869) receiving secondary
mental health services in employment

Bigger is Better Quarterly 9.4 % 17.0 % 16.0 % 18.0 % 16.0 % 16.0 % 13.0 %

ASCOF 1H Adults (18  69) contact with secondary
mental health services in settled accommodation

Bigger is Better Quarterly 55.0 % 88.0 % 96.0 % 87.0 % 87.0 % 87.0 % 80.0 %

ASCOF 1G Adults with learning disabilities in settled
accommodation

Bigger is Better Monthly 73.3 % 76.7 % 76.6 % 76.7 % 77.0 % 77.2 % 75.0 %

ASCOF 1E Adults with Learning Disabilities in Employment Bigger is Better Annual 6.5 % 8.7 % 6.8 % 6.4 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 15/16

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Target Dec
18

Comments Dec18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Comments

Reablement & Preventative

BOC1 Number of Reablement/Enablement Services Bigger is Better Snapshot 359 339 369 365 328
BOC5 Number of Other care services (i.e Preventative) Bigger is Better Snapshot 465 495 476 462 351

ASCOF 2B pt1 Proportion of older people
still at home 91 days after discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 82.1 % 74.7 % 81.4 % 81.8 % 79.5 %

ASCOF 2B pt2 Proportion of people aged
65+ offered reablement services after
hospital discharge

Bigger is Better Annual 2.2 % 3.0 % 3.4 % 2.9 % 2.2 %

ASCOF 2D % of new clients receiving a
lower level or no ongoing support after a
short term service

Bigger is Better Annual 82.8 % 90.2 % 89.2 % 90.1 % 89.6 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 17/18

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Comments 2017/18

Admissions & Transfers

ASCOF 2A pt1 Permanent admissions 1864 to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop Smaller is Better Rolling Year 15.20 10.62 9.80 11.98 14.10 14.64 12.00

We are currently investigating the latest change in
performance and a further report will be provided for
quarter four

ASCOF 2A pt1  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 1.36 0.82 1.36 1.90 1.63
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 2.45 1.91 2.72 2.71 3.52
ASCOF 2A pt1  GCC Physical Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 6.81 7.08 7.90 9.49 9.49

ASCOF 2A pt2 Permanent admissions aged 65+ to
residential & nursing care homes per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 555.90 492.97 514.57 513.03 485.58 434.15 550.00

ASCOF 2A pt2  2Gether (Mental Health) Smaller is Better Rolling Year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.76 1.51
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Learning Disabilities Smaller is Better Rolling Year 3.09 3.09 3.86 4.54 3.03
ASCOF 2A pt2  GCC Older People Smaller is Better Rolling Year 489.88 511.48 509.17 480.29 429.61

ASCOF 2C pt 2 Delayed transfers of care from hospital
due to Adult Social Care per 100,000 pop

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 5.50 4.07 4.32 4.61 4.39 4.19

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Target Dec18 Comments Dec18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Target Dec18 Comments Dec18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target (In Arrears)
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Comparator
Group 17/18

Qtr Sep17 Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Comments Sep18

Long Term Care

LCT1 Total number of Community Care Clients Plan is Best Snapshot 3,296 3,331 3,339 3,292 3,081
LCT2 Total number of Residential Care Clients Smaller is Better Snapshot 1,355 1,289 1,310 1,309 1,268
LCT3 Total number of Nursing Care Clients Smaller is Better Snapshot 647 621 637 633 625
ASC16a % of service users who have been asked at their last
assessment whether they have carer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.9 % 99.7 %

ASC16b % of carers identified who were then offered a carers
assessment

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC16c % of carers offered a carers assessment who accepted the
offer

Bigger is Better Snapshot 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

ASC1% of ongoing service users who have had a full reassessment of
their needs in the last 12months

Bigger is Better Snapshot 77.3 % 75.2 % 70.7 % 65.4 % 59.3 % 80.0 %

Validation work and data cleansing is currently underway.
Concentration has been on Non Care act assessments.
Activity is being monitored and localities will be asked to
offer a reassessment plan.

ASC1b  2Gether Bigger is Better Snapshot 97.2 % 95.4 % 96.7 % 96.8 % 97.5 % 95.0 %

ASC1b  LD Bigger is Better Snapshot 89.9 % 86.5 % 81.5 % 75.5 % 69.8 % 80.0 %

ASC1b  OP Bigger is Better Snapshot 67.0 % 65.2 % 60.7 % 54.9 % 47.8 % 70.0 %

ASC1b  PD Bigger is Better Snapshot 75.0 % 72.2 % 68.4 % 63.3 % 55.5 % 80.0 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Target Dec18 Comments Dec18

Safeguarding Adults

CDS SAR01 No. of Safeguarding adults concerns raised Bigger is Better Year to Date 346 425 528 524 490
GSAB1a Total  Advice Line Calls Bigger is Better Year to Date 842 954 1,181 1,061 950
CDS SAR02 No. of concerns that led to a safeguarding (S42) Care Act
enquiry

Smaller is Better Year to Date 153 192 313 255 224

GSAB5a % of total concerns leading to Section 42 enquiries Smaller is Better Year to Date 44.2 % 45.2 % 59.3 % 48.7 % 45.7 %
GSAB6a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk was
removed

Bigger is Better Year to Date 29.0 % 40.0 % 45.8 % 37.8 % 43.4 %

GSAB7a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk was
reduced

Bigger is Better Year to Date 50.0 % 43.0 % 41.9 % 43.6 % 45.1 %

GSAB8a % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk
remains

Smaller is Better Year to Date 11.0 % 12.0 % 11.8 % 15.4 % 11.5 %

GSAB8b % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where no risk
identified

Bigger is Better Year to Date 10.0 % 5.0 % 0.5 % 3.3 % 0.0 %

GSAB8c % of Section 42 enquiries closed this quarter where risk not
recorded

Bigger is Better Year to Date 0.4 % 0.8 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 %

Quarterly Trend Analysis  No Target
Good Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Dec17 Qtr Mar18 Qtr Jun18 Qtr Sep18 Qtr Dec18 Comments Dec18

Annual Survey

ASCOF 1A Social care reported quality of life Bigger is Better Annual 19.2 19.3 19.4 19.7 19.1
ASCOF 1B The proportion of those using services who
have control over their daily lives

Bigger is Better Annual 78.1 % 78.0 % 79.2 % 81.9 % 77.5 %

ASCOF 1I1 % of people who use services reporting they
had as much social contact as they would like

Bigger is Better Annual 46.3 % 47.2 % 48.2 % 52.8 % 49.2 %

ASCOF 3A Overall satisfaction of people who use services Bigger is Better Annual 66.4 % 66.9 % 65.7 % 69.0 % 63.5 %
ASCOF 3D1 The proportion of people who find it easy to
find information about services

Bigger is Better Annual 72.8 % 77.3 % 77.3 % 80.1 % 74.4 %

ASCOF 4A Proportion of people who use services who feel
safe

Bigger is Better Annual 71.0 % 67.7 % 71.4 % 75.0 % 70.9 %

ASCOF 4B Proportion of people using services saying
those services have made them feel safe & secure

Bigger is Better Annual 86.6 % 90.9 % 91.1 % 93.4 % 91.7 %

Annual Trend Analysis  No Target (2 Quarters in Arrears)
Good Performance High/Low Reporting

Basis
Comparator
Group 17/18

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Comments 2017/18

5

P
age 63

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col6')


Strategic Risk Summary  Adult Social Care

SR7.1
Failure to protect vulnerable adults in Gloucestershire from abuse
neglect in situations that potentially could have been predicted
and prevented.

Willcox, Margaret High 20 High 15 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10

Following the principles of Making Safeguarding Personal,
which supports people's rights to make their own decisions,
means that this risk remains possible. The Safeguarding
Adults Board is in the process of producing a High Risk
Behaviours Policy, aimed at supporting practitioners when
dealing with cases where there is concern that an adult is
at high risk of harm and is refusing to engage. This will be
launched in spring 2019.

SR7.6

Unable to support all those who can, to live independently at
home, because demand for home care services outstrips
available capacity. Resulting in the reliance on temporary
respite/alternative bed based care in lieu of home care

Willcox, Margaret High 20 High 15 High 15 High 15

Whilst the risk remains as it was in September, the
mitigating actions continue. Jan update: a considerable
amount of ongoing work with the local market is beginning
to create improvements in the ability to expedite
individuals into packages in their own homes. In addition
our work on 'Proud to Care' is focused on making the
whole care sector a more attractive career. Thus increasing
the volume, intensity and range of services available in the
community. Whilst these mitigating work programmes
continue, we are experiencing the demands associated with
the current Winter period. Thus there is an increased
frequency and volume of cases associated with hospital
discharge. Hence the sustained level of assessed risk.

SR7.8

Unable to access adequate levels of residential care beds, due to
Care Home provider failure, for those who can no longer live
independently at home. This would effect local market provision
and reduce the number of beds available.

Willcox, Margaret High 20 Low 6

The implementation of the Care Home Strategy coupled
with the key development of the three tiered conversation
within the Adult's Single Programme has reduced the risk
in this area.   This is further supported by the regional
workforce programme of Proud to Care which is increasing
the flow of staff into this area of provision.

Strategic Risk 7: Safeguarding Children & Young People and Adults
Ref. Risk Owner Inherent Risk Residual Risk

Mar18
Residual Risk
Jun18

Residual Risk
Sep18

Residual Risk
Dec18

Direction of
Travel

Mitigating Actions

Strategic Risk 7: Safeguarding Children & Young People and Adults Starting Q3 18/19
Ref. Risk Owner Inherent Risk Residual Risk Dec18 Mitigating Actions

6

P
age 64

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col16')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D2','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col1')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E2','Col10')


Health and Care Scrutiny Committee – 
Report from Commissioning Director: Adults and DASS

_________________________________________________

Proud to Care Gloucestershire 

National Adult Social Care Recruitment Campaign.
In Gloucestershire we piloted the Department of Health and Social Care’s National 
Adult Social Care Recruitment Campaign from 31 October 2018 to 28 November 
2018. The aim was to test the messages, creative content and channels of 
distribution, ahead of the roll out on 12th February 2019. The pilot campaign 
included digital adverts, localised radio adverts, trade PR (press release including a 
Ministerial quote), local consumer PR, campaign Facebook page and sector 
engagement through a campaign platform (Basecamp). 

In Gloucestershire the impact of the pilot was as follows: 
 c. 228k people were reached through coverage across BBC Radio 

Gloucestershire, local ITV TV channels 
 the Proud to Care Glos. website experienced a 1,997% increase in unique 

users 
 62% of users visiting the PTC Glos. website came via social media
 unique clicks on the 'apply for jobs' page increased by 533% 
 the PTC Glos. jobs portal experienced a 54% increase in vacancies being 

advertised 

Provider Engagement 
During December the team Inducted 12 new Ambassadors into the PTC Glos 
Ambassadors Network, taking the total number of Ambassadors to 67. 14 
Ambassadors attended a Continuing Professional Development workshop on 
Influencing Skills to support them when attending public engagement events to 
promote roles within Adult Social Care. A key focus has been developing an action 
plan to deliver a Guided Work Placement Scheme in partnership with Skills for Care 
(SfC). 

Glos Assistants
In October 2018 Glos Assistants went live. This is our Help, Care & Support 
Noticeboard (Register of employed and volunteer Assistants) a ‘one-stop-shop’ for 
individuals within Gloucestershire seeking or offering assistance. The site includes 
adverts from people of any age looking for assistance, profiles of people wanting to 
offer assistance, advice and guidance for all parties receiving or giving that 
assistance. It also provides a singular place of access for all using the site to have 

Page 65

Agenda Item 9



best practice guidance on safe recruitment and where to access further support if 
needed.

GCC has commissioned Inclusion Gloucestershire to deliver a pilot project to support 
the implementation of the Glos Assistants Noticeboard and to act as an enabler for 
good use of the Noticeboard. 

Inclusion Gloucestershire’s Noticeboard Co-ordinators have been carrying out the 
following activities to promote the noticeboard:

 Getting the word out about the website and promoting the Noticeboard
 Encouraging people to join the Noticeboard to widen the pool of available 

support
 Supporting new users to access the website via monthly drop ins in each 

district 
 Producing promotional material for the Noticeboard which facilitate the 

marketing process

The work delivered by Inclusion Gloucestershire’s Noticeboard Co-ordinators is 
supported by the Proud to Care team, who moderate the noticeboard to ensure 
users are kept safe. 

Fundamentals of Care Training Programme

This is a programme of training, primarily for domiciliary care staff, which aims to 
improve knowledge, understanding and confidence in a range of agreed areas to 
support people to remain at home where it is safe and appropriate to do so.

A Community trainer to deliver the Fundamentals of Care programme has now been 
appointed. The individual taking the post, Shirley James, is already a member of the 
Care Home Support Team and will be taking up the role on secondment.

Programme development, delivery and evaluation is led by Angela Willis (GCC HR), 
with funding from Health Education England for the new training post. It is overseen 
by a group of providers and commissioners. The group has agreed that mandatory 
elements of the programme will include person centred care, recognising 
deterioration, use of NEWS2 (the national early warning scorecard), escalation 
routes and end of life care.  

Angela Willis and Suzanne Booker have also met with Lorraine Dixon, (head of 
school of Health & Social Care, University of Gloucestershire)  to review how their 
clinical skills lab could be accessed as part of phase 2 of the programme (phase two 
is skills development and competency assessment).  

Page 66



Leadership & Management Development Pathway
A Proud to Care Coaching & Mentoring Scheme has been drafted and is to be 
implemented during the next financial year. There are hopes that a training day can 
be offered to coaches and mentors if the 18/19 funding will allow it.

The ‘Aspiring Managers Programme’ Pilot Cohorts are fully booked, with individuals 
attending from over 30 different organisations. Experienced Adult Social Care 
Managers have been invited to speak to delegates on their first day, with CQC on 
the second day and Gary Mack (Lead Commissioner) on the final day of the 
programme.

Furthermore it has been agreed that E-learning modules will be available via GCC’s 
current contract with Grey Matter and LearnPro. 

Carers Contract

PeoplePlus have been awarded the Adult element of carers’ support contracts from 
1st April 2019. PeoplePlus is working with existing providers, GCC and the CCG 
during the mobilisation period in order to ensure there is a smooth transition of 
services. Good progress has been made in line with the mobilisation plan, premises 
have been identified, the majority of staff on the TUPE list are expected to transfer, a 
secure data transfer approach has been agreed and work is on-going in respect of 
establishing business processes and systems. Continuity of care is important for 
carers receiving Carers Breaks and good progress has been made to ensure carers 
are able to stay with their current provider, if that is what they want to do after 1st 
April 2019. Commissioners are in daily contact with PeoplePlus to ensure 
mobilisation plans remain on track.

Joint Housing Action Plan and Housing with Care Programme

Update on Joint Housing Action Plan
• Warm and Well/Warm Homes Fund 

Progress continues with nearly 350 properties receiving energy efficiency measures. 
This includes the installation of 123 full central heating systems, with a further 450 
identified for installation over the coming months. Feedback from individuals and 
families is very positive and will be included in the evaluation of the programme.

• Housing advice and expertise in front line services

A housing advisor has been in post working with the Complex Care at Home team 
and our frailty services since April 2018. A housing advisor working with hospital 
discharges has been in post since November.  Both roles have been well received 

Page 67



by health and social care professionals and also the individuals they work with to 
seek solutions to meet their housing need.

• Park Homes

An analysis of the health outcomes of park home residents in Gloucestershire was 
undertaken that suggests people experience greater usage of hospital services, 
earlier onset of frailty and greater prevalence of a number of long term conditions. A 
programme of improvements to park homes will take place during 2019-20 to 
improve heat retention.

Housing with Care Programme Update

The programme is a long term, large scale piece of work that aims to reduce 
traditional institutional care, increase housing with care provision and improve quality 
of life. Governed by the Housing with Care Project and Programme Boards, the 
programme is benefiting from strong engagement from partners across the system. 

Following on from the large scale engagement exercise a strategic plan is being 
developed for each locality using collated data from all parties and relevant external 
sources.  

At present there are 5 key work-streams
• Developing the overarching strategy and place based locality strategic plans for the 
development of Extra Care Housing (ECH)
• Increasing use of current ECH including implementing new monitoring and contract 
arrangements
• Working with Registered Providers and Districts to review use of sheltered housing 
and maximise the benefit of this resource
• Scoping metrics to measure success – using Local Government Association 
funding to support increased use of ECH
• Reviewing Transforming Care Partnership (TCP) and transition data to consider 
how the development of housing with care may meet the needs of some individuals 
with complex needs.

Page 68



Health and Care Scrutiny Committee 

Report from the Director of Public Health

5th March 2019

__________________________________________________________________

Health & Wellbeing Board Strategy development and priorities

Following the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) development session in January, the 
priorities for the new Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) have been agreed as:

 Mental wellbeing
 Social isolation/loneliness
 Physical activity
 Housing
 Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs)
 Best start / early years
 Healthy lifestyles

Tackling social isolation and loneliness was agreed as a shared priority between the HWB 
and Safer Gloucestershire. 

The priorities were agreed through an extensive prioritisation exercise. Input from community 
and wider stakeholder engagement informed this. 

The seven priorities are overarching themes and the next stage is to understand what the 
scope of each of these should be, where the HWB can add value and to agree a governance 
and implementation model. 

The draft JHWS will be produced in the spring for consultation. 

ACEs update

The following provides an update on the progress made in implementing the seven 
objectives of Gloucestershire’s ACEs Strategy since it was launched at the More than ACEs 
Conference in November 2018.

Objective 1- Communications Campaign

This objective is being led by the Action on ACEs core communications team, made up of 
panel advisors, ACEs specialists and outside communications support. It covers awareness 
raising across the county through the free screening of the Resilience Documentary, 
alongside events and the development of resources for champions. Achievements so far 
include the inaugural conference, branding and communications tools, newsletter, three 
additional screenings of the documentary with a further three in planning.

Page 69

Agenda Item 10



Future resilience film screenings: 

 20th March  2019 - Members Seminar in the Council Chamber at Shire Hall – open 
members from all seven councils

 April 2019– Cheltenham. Working in conjunction with the No Child Gets Left Behind 
campaign. 

 May and June  2019– Tewkesbury and  Gloucester

Objective 2 – Training

This objective is being led by Dr.Imelda Bennett from Gloucestershire Clinical 
Commissioning Group, Designated Doctor for Children Safeguarding)   This includes the 
development of a skills and knowledge framework, which is currently being consulted on with 
a number of partners and will be launched later in 2019. ACEs Awareness packages are 
also being developed alongside a suite of tools and resources to get everyone talking about 
ACEs and resilience. For ACEs training enquiries please contact 
actionaces@gloucestershire.gov.uk  

Objective 3 – Partnership work with Communities

This objective is being led by Paul Stephenson, Chief Executive of Cheltenham Borough 
Homes and supported by the communities sub group. Two community pilots will begin in 
Kingsholm, Gloucester and St Pauls in Cheltenham. If you live or work in these areas and 
would like to be involved in creating ACE Aware Communities please get in touch. An ACEs 
education sub group has also been set up, led by Kevin Day, Headteacher at Belmont 
School.

Objective 4 – Information and Resources

Access to resources and information is a key part of our awareness raising activities. The 
new Action on ACEs website will act as a hub for local and global ACEs resources. This 
includes videos, links to expert research, support networks and the creation of a 
Gloucestershire community asset map. To add an organisation to the map, please get in 
touch.

Objective 5 – Distribution of ACEs

Our understanding of the distribution and prevalence of ACEs in Gloucestershire is 
increasing daily as more and more organisations and communities start to use ACES in their 
work to support the needs of children, young people and families. 

Objective 6 – Policies, Strategies and Contracts

We are hearing many stories of how an understanding of ACEs is already being built into 
organisational policies, strategies and contracts; thus giving people a common language to 
talk about adversity and resilience. Gloucestershire Constabulary is working towards 
becoming a trauma – informed organisation. Wendy Williams, Assistant Director for 
Integrated Children and Families Commissioning at Gloucestershire County Council, has 
developed a range of toolkits to help support her commissioned providers have a 
conversation around ACEs and resilience. To see how these tools can be transferred to 
other service contexts, they will be piloted in different settings (from Health, Police to 
community organisations) across the county. We are working in partnership with our 
colleagues in Wales to evaluate the effectiveness of these tools.

Page 70



Objective 7- Evaluation 

This objective is being led by Dr.Tanya Richardson, Consultant in Public Health at 
Gloucestershire County Council.  We are already receiving requests to share 
Gloucestershire’s story from organisations all over the country and beyond (the most distant 
request so far came from New Zealand!) An evaluation framework is being developed that 
will capture the stories that came from viral change, alongside ‘fit for purpose’ quantitative 
metrics to help us demonstrate the impact we are having. We are exploring possible 
evaluation partnerships with Public Health Wales and local Universities.

Public Mental Health

In November the Health and Wellbeing Board received a presentation on the Director of 
Public Health’s report: Leading the Way to Wellbeing and the All Age Mental Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy for Gloucestershire 2018 -2023

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=653&MId=8719&Ver=4.

These documents provide an overview of mental health in the county, service provision and 
our priorities and direction over the next few years.  

Our approach to promoting mental wellbeing and preventing mental illness includes the 
following activities:

Promoting metal wellbeing and reducing stigma:

 We have launched ‘GLoW’ – the Gloucestershire Wellbeing Commitment, and we’re 
asking our public, voluntary and private sector partners to sign up and take positive 
action to improve mental wellbeing for everyone in Gloucestershire.

 Promoting the Five Ways to Wellbeing through local services such as 
Gloucestershire Healthy Living and Learning healthy schools programme, Active 
Gloucestershire and Support at the Cavern.

 Continue the work of the Gloucestershire Tackling Mental Health Stigma Group, 
including developing our role as an Organic Time to Change Hub.

Intervening early to prevent mental illness and mitigate against risk factors:

 We are working with communities to Be Aware, Talk About and Act on ACEs – the 
adverse childhood experiences and traumatic events which increase risk of 
developing poor mental health in adulthood.

 Gloucestershire has been awarded £5 million to become a pilot area for school 
Mental Health Support Teams.  73 primary, secondary and special schools in 
Gloucestershire will benefit from early identification and support to pupils, families 
and teachers to promote mental wellbeing and prevent mental illness.

Preventing self-harm and suicide

 Continue to offer and promote the toolkit of resources (such as the ASIST Suicide 
First Aid and Mental Health First Aid training) to key front-line staff and community 
leaders in the county.

Page 71

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=653&MId=8719&Ver=4


 Roll out the Suicide Prevention Partnership’s communications and engagement plan, 
targeting key groups identified in the suicide audit.

 Engage ‘non-traditional’ partners (such as the Forestry Commission), who have 
responsibility for public places where people attempt or complete suicide, to increase 
the use of evidence based preventative measures.

 Continue to raise awareness of the importance of sensitive media reporting of suicide 
to reduce risk to those who are vulnerable, balanced with the need to tackle stigma.

 Improve support to GPs and people working in Primary Care to share learning from 
deaths by suicide and increase training and development in identifying suicide risk 
and providing effective support / making appropriate referrals through the recently 
appointed lead GP for suicide prevention.

 Improve the availability of ‘postvention’ support (timely support for people bereaved 
or affected by suicide) in Gloucestershire. This will build on and join up existing 
services and develop the evidence base around effective interventions.

 Deliver the comprehensive action plan to reduce self-harm in the county.

Developing a care pathway for children and young people living with obesity

Obesity is a rapidly growing threat to the health of children and young people. Childhood 
obesity causes a range of serious physical and psychological health conditions including a 
40-50% increased risk of asthma. Without intervention children with severe obesity are likely 
to be affected throughout their lives and many will develop significant co-morbidities as 
young adults including hypertension, early markers of cardiovascular disease and type 2 
diabetes. 

10% of 4-5 year olds and 17.8% of 10-11 year olds in Gloucestershire are living with obesity, 
with the highest prevalence in Gloucester City and the Forest of Dean.  Of these 2.4% of 4-5 
year olds and 3.7% of 10-11 year olds in Gloucestershire have severe obesity (defined as 
BMI > 99.6th percentile).  Again the highest prevalence of severe obesity is in Gloucester 
City and the Forest of Dean.  In fact the prevalence of severe obesity among 10-11 year olds 
in Gloucester City is 5%, which is the highest in the South West and significantly higher than 
the national average of 4.2%. Obesity among children is a health inequalities issue with 
those living in low income neighbourhoods having double the risk of developing obesity than 
those from high income areas.   

Steps to address childhood obesity are considered to be crucial to the future sustainability of 
the health and care system and Gloucestershire’s STP submission (2016) included a 
commitment to increase investment across childhood obesity pathways.  The NHS Long 
Term Plan indicates an expectation to treat 1,000 children a year for severe complications 
related to their obesity by 2022/23.

Currently in Gloucestershire there is no systematic provision for the assessment, referral and 
treatment of obesity among children, and no local policy in place guiding weight 
management decisions.  Over recent months Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group 
(GCCG) and GCC have jointly agreed to invest in a 2 year pilot programme of weight 
management support for children affected by obesity.  The proposed offer will include:

 The identification/development of self-care information and resources e.g.  
Smartphone apps for families and teenagers

 Community based (‘Tier 2’) weight management support for children affected by 
obesity.  This offer will be developed and tested in Gloucester City and the Forest of 
Dean during the pilot period

Page 72



 Specialised weight management support for children with severe obesity. This will be 
procured from a regional specialised children’s weight management service and will 
be available to children from across the county.

There are many barriers to parental engagement in community based children’s weight 
management services.  With this in mind Public Health and the CCG are seeking to work 
with families to co-develop and test our local tier 2 offer.  

The English market for the required Tier 2 service is embryonic in nature so outcome 
evidence is presently limited.  Over the past few months, Public Health has worked with the 
CCG to conduct a thorough process to explore the market and select a provider with the 
right credentials for this pilot phase.  Beezee Bodies, a Community Interest Company has 
been selected as the preferred pilot partner.  Co-production / service development, in 
tandem with the development of bespoke Apps* for digital self-care, started in February 
2019.  It is anticipated that service delivery will start in September 2019 and will continue 
until April 2021. 

Meanwhile, CCG commissioners are negotiating a package of tier 3 provision for children 
affected by severe obesity.  

An independent evaluation of the full weight management pathway is being commissioned, 
which will inform the business case for future investment into children’s weight management. 

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 1 

 
 

Gloucestershire Health and Care Overview and  
Scrutiny Committee (HCOSC) 

5 March 2019  

 
NHS Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group (GCCG)  

Clinical Chair and Accountable Officer’s Report  
 
1. Introduction 
 

Section A provides a general NHS Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning 
Group (GCCG) commissioner update, incorporating a national consultation 
section.  
Section B provides a CCG commissioner update focussing on primary medical 
care. 
Section C provides Trusts’ updates from: 2gether NHS Foundation Trust 
(2GNHSFT); Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust (GCSNHST) and 
Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (GHNHSFT). 

 
Integrated Care System (ICS) 
ICS Lead Report is provided as a separate agenda item. 

 

2. Section A: Local NHS Commissioner Update, 
 Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group 
 (GCCG)   

These are items are for information and noting.  

Please note some of the items reported below may also feature in more detail in 
other reports prepared for HCOSC e.g. ICS Lead Report, wherever possible 
duplication is avoided.  

2.1 NHS long term plan: local response to publication from One Gloucestershire 
 Health and Care leaders 

Health and care leaders in Gloucestershire welcomed the publication of the 

national 10 year plan for the NHS in January 2019, saying it is ‘perfectly in sync’ 

with the development of support and services locally. 

Last year, Gloucestershire was named as one of only 14 Integrated Care Systems 

(ICS) in the country. The county was praised for effective partnership working and 

ambitious plans to prevent ill-health and join up support and services for the benefit 

of communities. Gloucestershire was also recognised for improvements in access 

to GP services, developments in community and mental health services, A&E 

performance as well as a reduction in cancelled operations and delays for people 

ready to leave hospital. 

Page 75

Agenda Item 11



 

 2 

Working as ‘One Gloucestershire’ the ICS has made real strides over the last few 

years, using collective strength and resources to improve the way it supports 

people through each stage of life. Gloucestershire has a relatively healthy 

population, but there are pockets of deprivation and an ageing and growing 

population with more complex needs. This challenge requires a real transformation 

in the way the ICS approaches health improvement and delivers care and support. 

Prevention is better than cure and the ICS will continue to place a greater 

emphasis on reducing the likelihood of ill health, physical and mental, at every 

stage in life and supporting people and families to look after themselves when they 

can. 

The ICS will continue to see more care and support being provided in people’s own 

homes, GP surgeries and local neighbourhoods in familiar surroundings, 

supporting people to retain their independence for as long as possible. 

When people are really unwell, it is important to ensure specialist hospital and 

mental health services are truly outstanding and comparable to the best in 

England. To secure the future of many existing services within the county, ICS 

partners need to think longer term and look at how best to configure services to 

meet the highest standards of care. 

The ICS wants to be truly ambitious for Gloucestershire residents in making this 

county a healthier place to live with the best possible support and services in 

place. The first half of this year will be spent listening to the views of community 

partners, the public healthcare professionals to support further development of 

healthcare and support in the county. 

Read the NHS Long Term Plan at www.longtermplan.nhs.uk 

News and video content highlighting progress in Gloucestershire can be found at: 

www.onegloucestershire.net 

A fuller update on the NHS Long Term Plan is contained within the Integrated care 

System Lead Report (March 2019).  

2.2 Development of Integrated Locality Partnerships and Primary Care Networks 

Progress is being made towards implementing the new service models set out in 

the NHS Long Term plan.  

During 2019/20 Integrated Locality Partnerships (ILP) will be developing across 

Gloucestershire building on the three current ILP pilots implemented in 2018-19. 

ILP’s will have a key role in bringing together health and social care at a district 

level. Initially they will be an Operational and Strategic partnership of senior 

leaders of health and social care providers and local government, supporting the 

integration of services and teams at PCN level.  

NHS England (NHSE) has set out the ambition for CCGs to encourage every 

practice to be part of a local Primary Care Network by the end of 2018/19. As an 

Integrated Care System (ICS), One Gloucestershire needs to move further, faster, 

Page 76

http://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/
http://www.onegloucestershire.net/


 

 3 

along the Primary Care Maturity Matrix. Working with ICS partners, work is 

underway to draft initial ideas on how Primary Care Networks can be implemented 

in Gloucestershire and making links with the Population Health Management 

Programme. The ICS is liaising with the National Association of Primary Care 

regarding implementation of the Primary Care Home model locally. 

The role of ILPs will be to unlock issues for PCNs and share responsibility, working 

with PCNs, to find local solutions to delivering ICS priorities and tackling issues 

which arise locally which can only be resolved collectively.  

In time, the ambition is to see the membership of ILPs broaden to include partners 

whose work impacts on health and wellbeing and the wider determinants of health, 

for example social prescribing, education and employment and working alongside 

a range of other partners and local communities. 

ILPs will have the following characteristics and responsibilities:  

 Operational and Strategic partnership of senior leaders of health and social 

care providers and locally elected government and lay representatives 

informing and supporting integration at PCN level, unlocking issues and 

sharing responsibility for finding local solutions to deliver ICS priorities and 

tackling issues which arise locally which can only be resolved collectively. 

 Clinically-led integration, involving staff and local people in decisions, to 

support more people in the community and out of hospital.  

 ILP Plans to deliver defined population strategy including ill-health 

prevention and public health, with aligned priorities agreed to improve 

outcomes.  

 Developing multidisciplinary workforce models which will operate at PCN 

level.  

 Translation of ICS objectives to meet the needs of their local population 

while enabling the PCNs to realise their plans to implement multi-

disciplinary teams (MDT) working around the needs of their patients 

To date, Gloucestershire has piloted three ILPs in the Forest of Dean, Cheltenham 

and Stroud and Berkeley Vale and they have already seen some exciting 

developments which have only been achievable through working closely together, 

as follows: 

 Working with Care Homes: in Stroud and Cheltenham, networks have built 

closer relationships with care homes by agreeing which GP practice covers 

which care home. The ultimate aim is to better support residents who are at 

risk of deteriorating by using an MDT approach, advanced care planning, 

using the “red bag scheme” and “orange folder” and joint training on the 

Rapidly Deteriorating Patient.  

Page 77



 

 4 

 Workforce Models: networks have a range of new professionals in GP 

practices, many of whom are employed by one of our ICS partners. For 

example paramedics, employed by SWASTNHSFT, who undertake home 

visits; Advanced Nurse Practitioners from GCSNHST who see and treat 

patients who are care navigated directly to them from reception.  

 Dementia: Stroud Rural developed a pilot in conjunction with 

2getherNHSFT, whereby Community Dementia Nurses coordinated all 

annual reviews of the network’s patients, recording information only the 

practice’s respective clinical system. This reduced duplication, reduced the 

cost of prescribing and reduced excess bed days for those patients by more 

than 6 days, by a total of 106 days.  

 Utilising Existing Services Better: A part of the role of the ILP is to ensure 

constituent networks are aware of, and utilise, existing services such as the 

Ambulatory Emergency Care Unit at the hospital as an alternative to 

admission. Cheltenham ILP, for example, has embraced the new Complex 

Care at Home Service and worked actively with GCSNHST to refer the most 

appropriate patients.  

 Introduction of Multi-Disciplinary Teams (MDT) meetings: MDT meetings are 

operational in Berkeley Vale, Cheltenham St Paul’s and the Forest of Dean. 

MDTs include staff from primary care, the Community Wellbeing Service, 

GCSNHST (or a mixture of Complex Care at Home, Integrated Community 

Team, Rapid Response) and 2getherNHSFT as a minimum, and pull in staff 

from other organisations, including district councils, on a case-by-case 

basis. The MDTs meet monthly to review cases and coordinate each 

patient’s care. 

There are currently seven localities in primary care in Gloucestershire, organised 

around the PCNs. In the future it is expected the focus on population will be at a 

neighbourhood level, through the PCNs will continue to drive the ILP structure. The 

proposal is to move to six ILPs; full engagement is underway with Local/District 

Authority partners about the ILP structure and how to engage strategically as an 

ILP. 

2.3 Joining Up Your Information (JUYI project) 
 

JUYI, Gloucestershire's shared care record system, is live within primary care, 

community and mental health information is now available to view in: 

 2gNHSFT Mental Health Liaison Team, Crisis Resolution and the Home 

Treatment Teams and Children and Young People Service. 

 Gloucestershire Care Services (GCSNHST) Rapid Response, Integrated 

Assessment Team, Evening and Night District Nursing Service, Minor 

Injuries and Illness Units and Inpatients. 

 

This represents 180 plus users with an average of 50 Accesses per day. Feedback 

has been received through site visits to the different teams and surveys have also 

Page 78



 

 5 

been sent via email to those teams within 2gNHSFT which have been live for three 

months. Positive feedback has been received from those using the new system: 

 

 Rapid Response has been able to accept patients out of hours, where they 

would have normally declined. 

 Calls between clinicians and GP practices have been reduced by not having 

to chase clinical summaries. This means that they can facilitate a more 

rapid response to referrals. 

 The teams have been able to identify contacts with other services outside of 

SystmOne, which has enabled Rapid Response to signpost patients more 

efficiently to wider services. 

 Staff have been able to save time as they are able to access GP records, 

especially being able to see medications prescribed to patients. 

 

Some users have commented that: 

 the system is really easy to use 

 I don’t have to wait for a fax from the GP to come through 

 I am able to quickly see when safeguarding documents have been updated 

 it is really helpful to be able to see what medications have been prescribed 

by the GP 

 

 
2.4 CINAPSIS Advice and Guidance System 

 

Cinapsis is an Advice & Guidance and referral management system. It has been 

developed to make specialist advice easily available to GPs and other clinicians in 

primary care through a choice of communication channels. The Cinapsis 

communication platform makes it easy for GPs to talk directly to specialist 

consultants on the telephone or through a dedicated messaging service. The 

platform replicates as closely as possible the experience of attending a specialist 

outpatient clinic within the GP’s surgery. Using Cinapsis, GPs are able to share 

patient data securely with the best specialists instantly, knowing that everything will 

be documented in a clinic letter. 

 

Gloucestershire is currently piloting the service at Mythe Practice in Tewkesbury 

and Brunston & Lydbrook in the Forest of Dean for acute medical referrals only. 

The quality of the service has been shown to be satisfactory during the pilot period 

and a phased roll out of the service to the remaining 78 practices in 

Gloucestershire is underway. Once complete, links to other specialities including 

general surgery, ophthalmology, dermatology and frailty and old age will be offered 

over time. 

 
2.5 Carers Support Services 
 

A contract to deliver a range of support services for adult unpaid carers, worth 

£1.77million a year, was awarded by Gloucestershire County Council and the CCG 

Page 79



 

 6 

to PeoplePlus Group Ltd in December 2018. This followed a transparent tender 

process and extensive engagement with carers. 

 

Carers Gloucestershire, holders of the current contract, met with PeoplePlus 

Group Ltd for the first time in January 2019. This meeting focused on commencing 

the mobilisation process and jointly developing plans for a smooth transition of 

services, ensuring continuity of care and support for carers after 1April 2019. 

PeoplePlus Group Ltd provides daily updates to Commissioners and will make 

more detailed plans, with timescales available over the next two weeks. 

Alongside these discussions, and as plans develop, all parties have agreed to a 

joint communications plan to ensure there is county-wide consistency of messages 

to carers, staff, GP’s and key stakeholders.  

Gloucestershire Young Carers will continue to provide support for young people in 

the county, who are in a caring role, after being awarded the contract from 1 April 

2019. 

 

3. Department of Health and Social Care and NHS England 
 Consultations 
 
3.1 Information regarding Department of Health and Social Care consultations is 
 available via the GOV.UK website: 
 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultat
 ions 

 
Information regarding NHS England consultations is available via the NHS 
England website: https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/ 
 
These websites also include responses to closed consultations. 
 

3.2 Hand and Upper Limb Transplant Service Specification 
 https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/consultation/hand-and-upper-limb-
 transplant/ 

NHS England has launched a 30 day consultation on a draft specification for 
hand and upper limb transplant services. 
Deadline for responses: 10 Mar 2019 
 
Penile Prosthesis Surgery (for end stage erectile dysfunction) 

 https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/consultation/penile-prosthesis-surgery/ 
 NHS England has launched a 60 day consultation on a draft service 
 specification for penile prosthesis surgery for end stage erectile dysfunction. 

Deadline for responses: 19 Mar 2019 
 

3.3 Department of Health and Social Care Policies 
 

The following web link provides access to Department of Health and Social 
Care Policies: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/policies?keywords=&organisations%5B%5D=d
epartment-of-health  

Page 80

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications?publication_filter_option=consultations
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/consultation/hand-and-upper-limb-transplant/
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/consultation/hand-and-upper-limb-transplant/
https://www.engage.england.nhs.uk/consultation/penile-prosthesis-surgery/
https://www.gov.uk/government/policies?keywords=&organisations%5B%5D=department-of-health
https://www.gov.uk/government/policies?keywords=&organisations%5B%5D=department-of-health


 

 7 

 

4. Section B: Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning 
 Group (GCCG) primary medical care commissioning 
 update   

These items are for information and noting. 

4.1 Primary Care Workforce 
  

4.1.1 The Health Inequalities Fellowship 

The Health Inequalities Fellowship focuses on reducing health inequalities in 

primary care, will host two GPs in Gloucester City (Hadwen and Bartongate 

practices) initially. In addition a GP has been confirmed for Partners In Health 

(Gloucester City) to start the scheme later in the year. A Health Inequalities 

teaching schedule has been established, which will be shared with other GPs in 

Gloucester City should they wish to attend the sessions; this commenced in 

January 2019. The Health Inequalities fellowship was a finalist for the workforce 

category for the 2018 Health Service Journal Awards and, although it did not win, 

the nomination was a fantastic recognition of our innovative work in 

Gloucestershire. 

4.1.2 Newly Qualified GP Scheme and GP Retention Programme 

The local Newly Qualified GP Scheme is continuously being promoted through 

CCG Live (the Gloucestershire GPs Intranet) with a rolling application date. Two of 

the four spaces for this year have been filled at the Chipping Surgery and 

Gloucester Health Access Centre (GHAC). In terms of the CCG’s GP Retention 

programme, applications have been supported for the Alney Practice and Yorkley 

practice in the Forest of Dean. Currently, Gloucestershire has one GP who has 

been accepted onto the International GP Recruitment scheme and who would like 

to work at Partners In Health in Gloucester City. 

4.1.3 Student Nurse Placements 

The CCG has been working with practices and Universities to increase student 

nurse placements. The number of practices taking student nurses has increased 

from 7 (Jan 2017) to 15 in January 2019. Several more practices are interested in 

taking students and are being supported to do this in the future. 

4.1.4 Practice Prescribing Support 

Following the recent completion of a successful recruitment process in January 

2019, the CCG has added a further three pharmacy technicians to the current 

team. Through expansion of this GP practice based pharmacy technician team, the 

intention is to improve the skill mix in the established GP practice based 

prescribing support pharmacist teams. Qualified pharmacy technicians are a cost 

effective resource to minimise the amount of time pharmacists spend on more 

straightforward medicines optimisation improvement activities in GP practices, 

such as patient and drug searches/audits and the implementation of simple 

Page 81



 

 8 

prescribing changes. This will enable more prescribing support pharmacist time to 

be diverted to more clinical activities such as medication reviews. 

The Prescribing Support Dietitian continues to advise the pharmacists/GPs on 

appropriate, cost-effective prescribing of nutritional products including the 

maintenance of the reduction in sip feed use and will shortly be launching new 

prescribing pathways for Vitamin B12 and Infant Formula. Following this, work will 

be undertaken on addressing the prescribing of laxatives, which has been assisted 

by the Care Homes Support Team Dietitian (0.5WTE post shared with the Care 

Home Support Team) joining the team in February 2019. 

4.2 Online Consultations 

Gloucestershire is planning a two-tiered approach for Online Consultations to test 

the benefits for patients and practices, whilst keeping an eye to the future 

developments with 111 Online and the NHS App. With this in mind, proposals for a 

‘Core’ and an ‘Enhanced’ offer have been developed. The core offer is the 

procurement of a new website that promotes a ‘digital- first’ approach. This will 

support Care Navigation and signposting to self-help and other services, allow 

secure electronic communication between patients and practices and 

administrative functionality which will reduce calls to practices and associated 

administrative burden. The new website will also act as a platform to implement 

and embed the enhanced offer. 

At present, over half of local practices have expressed an interest in the 

procurement, and several have already upgraded to a website with online 

consultation functionality. These practices cover just over 500,000 patient 

population. Procurement through the National Procurement Hub began in mid-

December 2018 and the procurement and contract award was made to Silicon 

Practice Ltd, with their Footfall system, in mid-February 2019. Local Patient 

Participation Group (PPG) representatives were involved in the procurement 

process.  

The enhanced offer is a trial of a more advanced system that allows online 

symptom checking and triage, GP appointment booking, plus integration with 

existing clinical systems. Four of the five pilot practices are live and are 

encouraging patients to begin using the new system. Patient adoption is increasing 

week on week. 

4.3 Cleevelands Medical Centre, Bishops Cleeve open 

Facilities at the new Cleevelands Medical Centre were officially opened by the 

Lord-Lieutenant of Gloucestershire, Mr Edward Gillespie, in February 2019. 

The premises are located in the new housing estate in Bishop’s Cleeve. The 

medical centre brings together two surgeries, Seven Posts (which was located in 

Prestbury) and Greyholme (which was in Bishop Cleeve’s village centre) onto the 

new site. 

Page 82



 

 9 

The local population has grown significantly over the past few years, and the 

practice currently provides care to over 10,300 patients. With further housing 

planned for the area, the new centre’s total number of patients is set to continue to 

rise in the coming years. 

The new building is modern, spacious, light and airy. It has 14 clinical rooms, 

including consulting and nurse treatment rooms, as well as a suite for minor 

operations and an onsite pharmacy. Another three clinical rooms are available to 

be used as the population grows and demand increases, and there is also the 

potential for dentistry or other healthcare related services to be provided. 

4.4 GP practices in Gloucestershire create 100,000 more appointments 

Gloucestershire’s 75 GP practices are working together in 16 Primary Care 

Networks (PCNs) to make over 100,000 additional GP surgery appointments 

available this year in the daytime, evening and weekends through ‘improved 

access’ initiatives.  

The extra appointments are mainly provided by GPs and nurses; and in some 

networks by paramedics and physiotherapists, offering a greater range of skills and 

services and freeing up GP time to spend with patients who have complex needs.  

Paramedics are working with some GP networks to carry out home visits in the 

community, which is saving GPs around 120 visits a month, whilst physiotherapists 

in other networks are offering more than 180 appointments.  

There are also more than 40 clinical pharmacists working in practices offering 

expert advice on medications, along with three mental health practitioners, who 

see around 65 patients a week.  

Through these innovations and strong partnership working in PCNs, more patients 

are being treated close to home with fewer people needing to be referred to 

hospital.  

The additional health professionals often work across practices providing clinics 

and extra appointments. Patients are signposted to the most appropriate health 

professional, relieving pressure on GP appointments. Introducing different skill 

mixes into practices has been excellent for patients, and across Gloucestershire 

there are a variety of different services based on each surgery’s specific need. The 

feedback from patients and staff has been extremely encouraging and we look 

forward to developing this diverse offer more. 

More appointments are available from Monday to Friday 6.30pm to 8pm and 

Saturday mornings, plus Saturday afternoon and Sunday. 

 

Page 83



 

 10 

5. Section C: Local Providers’ updates  
 

This Section includes updates from 2gether NHS Foundation Trust 
(2GNHSFT), Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust (GCSNHST) and 
Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust (GHNHSFT),  
 

These items are for information and noting. 
 

5.0 Trusts Merger update 
 
The proposed merger between Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust and 
2gether NHS Foundation Trust continues to progress. In December 2018, NHS 
Improvement (NHSI) provided feedback on the strategic case as well as the 
timetable the Trusts are working to.  
 
NHSI has given us strong support for moving on to the next stage. They have 
also suggested that the ‘transaction date’ should move to 1 October 2019, 
rather than 1 July 2019. This is to provide more time to quantify the benefits of 
our work and to give NHSI more time to consider and discuss our final business 
case with us prior to the merger. Boards have agreed to this suggestion. 
Therefore, the formal merger will now take effect on 1 October 2019. This does 
not mean that the pace of work will slow.  
 
The ‘Shadow Board’ for the new Trust has been selected. Membership is as 
follows:  
 

 Ingrid Barker, Chair 

 Maria Bond, Non-Executive Director 

 Marcia Gallagher, Non-Executive Director 

 Sumita Hutchison, Non-Executive Director 

 Jan Marriott, Non-Executive Director 

 Graham Russell, Non-Executive Director 

 Duncan Sutherland, Non-Executive Director 

 Paul Roberts, Chief Executive 

 Sandra Betney, Director of Finance and Performance 

 John Campbell, Chief Operating Officer 

 Colin Merker, Managing Director of Herefordshire Services 

 Neil Savage, Director of Human Resources and Organisational 
Development 

 John Trevains, Director of Nursing, Therapies and Quality 

 Amjad Uppal, Medical Director 
 
The Shadow Board is the ‘Board in waiting’, which will take over once the 
merger is approved and oversee preparations for the new organisation on 
behalf of the two Boards.  
 
Many of the Trusts’ corporate services are now co-located, and work to create 
the organisational structures of the new Trust is underway. A name for the new 
organisation will be selected at the end of March 2019. 
 

Page 84



 

 11 

The transformation of services, known as the Better Care Together programme, 
which is at the heart of the merger, is beginning to take shape but will be a 
longer term process, likely to take a number of years. Nevertheless, several 
projects focussing on certain service areas are beginning to take effect and will 
be used as examples of how mental health, physical health and learning 
disability services can be better joined-up to support the needs of local 
communities now and in the future. 
 

5.1 
2
gether NHS Foundation Trust (

2
GNHSFT) 

 
5.1.1 County Secures £5m to Improve Mental Health Support for Children 
 

²gether worked alongside NHS Gloucestershire CCG and other partners, including 
Gloucestershire County Council and TIC+, to submit the county’s successful bid to 
secure £5 million of funding, which will see specialist mental health support in 
schools and waiting times for other mental health services improve. The funding 
will be used to set up four Mental Health Support Teams in a number of schools 
across the county, including primary, secondary, special schools and other 
settings. 
 
The teams will be staffed by a combination of experienced, qualified counsellors 
working alongside NHS staff; the balance of skills, experience and training within 
the teams will be flexible in order to meet the specific needs of the children in each 
type of school. 
 
The teams will focus on improving the resilience of students in schools, providing 
early support to prevent issues from escalating. They will also identify children and 
young people who need more specialist help and ensure they receive the support 
they need. Some funds will also be put towards reducing the length of time young 
people wait for treatment following a referral to specialist mental health services. 

 
5.1.2 New Non-Executive Director for Trust Board 
 

²gether has welcomed new Non-Executive Director, Sumita Hutchison, to the 
Board. Sumita, who lives in Bristol, is hoping to use both her personal and 
professional experience to support the work of the Trust. 
 
She is a lawyer by background and a social care commissioner. She is also 
currently a Non-Executive Director on the Board of Bristol Community Health. In 
addition, she is one of the founding members of the Mayoral Bristol Commission 
for Race Equality and a member of the Women’s Commission (Bristol). 

 
5.1.3 Flu Vaccination Target Achieved 

 
The Trust achieved and exceeded its target of delivering the flu vaccination to 75% 
of front line clinical colleagues. The annual flu programme is a significant 
undertaking but is vitally important. The vaccination is the most effective way of 
protecting colleagues from the flu, which in turn protects service delivery and 
service users and carers from contracting what can be a fatal disease. Colleagues 
are also protecting family members and anyone else they come into contact with 
from the flu, which is particularly dangerous for the very young, very old and those 
with long term physical health conditions.  

 

Page 85



 

 12 

5.1.4 Dysphagia Awareness Week 
 

During January 2019 ²gether ran a campaign to raise awareness of dysphagia 
[pronounced: dis-fey-juh] (eating, drinking, and swallowing problems), particularly 
within our Working Age Adult services. Dysphagia can result in severe outcomes, 
including aspiration, pneumonia and choking, which can potentially lead to death.  
 
Within ²gether, dysphagia is most commonly seen within our learning disability and 
older people services, where we have Speech and Language Therapists providing 
specialist advice and assessments.  
 
More recently, the local and national picture is suggesting that dysphagia may be 
an under-reported symptom amongst working age adults experiencing mental ill 
health. This could be caused by medication side-effects and/or risky behaviours 
when eating and drinking (pacing when eating/drinking, bolting food, cramming 
food in to the mouth, eating/drinking when lying down).  
 
During Dysphagia Week the Trust raised awareness of the signs and symptoms of 
dysphagia and how to seek advice.  

 
5.1.5 Cyber Essentials Plus Certificate 

 
2gether has achieved Cyber Essentials Plus accreditation. The standard is a 
Government-backed, industry-supported scheme to help organisations protect 
themselves against common online threats. This is very difficult to achieve, 
particularly on a 'shared network'. Currently around 10% of NHS organisations 
have this, the other 90% have failed. All trusts must achieve this accreditation by 
June 2021 so the Trust is several years ahead of the pack on this, which is 
fantastic news and gives increased assurance that Trust network systems and 
controls are in good order.  

 
 

5.2 Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust (GCSNHST) 
 

5.2.1 New Specialist Stroke Rehabilitation Unit Opens at Vale Community Hospital 

 

The specialist stroke rehabilitation inpatient unit, located within Peak View Ward, at 
Vale Community Hospital opened at the beginning of February 2019. The purpose 
of the new unit is to bridge the current gap in post-stroke care in Gloucestershire; 
giving people who have suffered a stroke maximum opportunity to recover and 
adapt in the best possible environment. Specialist rehabilitation is widely 
recognised as an essential part of recovery after stroke, providing significant health 
and social care benefits for patients over the longer term. 

 

The unit is there for patients who no longer need specialist medical care at 
Gloucestershire Royal Hospital (GRH), but still require stroke rehabilitation that 
cannot be delivered at home. The unit, which has 14 specialist stroke beds, is 
staffed by a multidisciplinary team including doctors, nurses, physiotherapists, 
speech and language therapists, occupational therapists, rehabilitation assistants 
and hotel services. A psychologist will be joining the team soon. 

 

Page 86



 

 13 

By providing a community bed-based service at Vale Community Hospital the aim 
is to continue the rehabilitation journey for patients following a stroke in a suitable, 
fit-for-purpose environment. When patients no longer need inpatient specialist 
stroke rehabilitation, and if it is safe and effective for them to have rehabilitation in 
their own home, they will receive ongoing support from community stroke specialist 
nurses or the Early Supported Discharge (ESD) community team, including 
community stroke specialist nurses, specialist therapists and rehabilitation 
assistants. 

 

The opening of the unit at Vale Community Hospital means Gloucestershire has its 
own dedicated community stroke rehabilitation service for the first time, in line with 
national recommendations for therapy provision following a stroke. 

 

5.2.2 Trust Colleagues Invited to Celebration Event at the House of Commons  

 

Lord Willis of Knaresborough hosted a reception on behalf of the Nursing and 
Midwifery Council (NMC) and Health Education England (HEE) in celebration of 
the first nursing associates joining the NMC register. Karen Pudge, Widening 
Access and Apprenticeship Lead, and Scott Walker, Trainee Nursing Associate, 
received a personal invitation from Lord Willis, requesting the pleasure of their 
company at the celebration event, which was held in early February 2019.  

 

Colleagues from other local health and social care partners were also invited to 
attend the event. Formal addresses were received from Lord Willis, Andrea 
Sutcliffe, NMC Chief Executive and Registrar, Ian Cummings, HEE Chief Executive 
and Stephen Hammonds MP, Minster of State Department of Health.  

In 2016, Gloucestershire was named as one of 24 early implementer sites to 
deliver training for this new, important NHS nursing role. The training for 
Gloucestershire’s 32 nursing associates commenced in 2017, with the initiative 
aiming to create over 1,000 new nursing associates nationally. The nursing 
associate role sits alongside existing fully-qualified registered nurses and other 
clinical support roles to deliver care to patients, and the first cohort of One 
Gloucestershire’s nursing associates are due to qualify and register with the NMC 
early this summer 2019 which is great news. 

 

The University of Gloucestershire has been instrumental in providing the training 
for these nursing associate roles, in collaboration with the Gloucestershire Clinical 
Commissioning Group and Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust, 2gether 
NHS Foundation Trust, and Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust  

Nurses have a hugely important role in community services and we believe that the 
skilled nursing associate workforce will offer greater support to our registered 
nurses, and ensure that the Trust continues to provide high-quality person-centred 
care. 

 

5.2.3 Location for a New Community Hospital in the Forest of Dean 

 

Following both the Trust Board and Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning 
Group’s decision to site the new community hospital in the Cinderford area, work is 
progressing in developing the Outline Business Case (OBC) for the Trust Board to 
consider in due course. 

 

Page 87



 

 14 

The Trust is reviewing the identified sites in the Cinderford area, and an options 
appraisal will be undertaken, which will include the site selection criteria identified 
in the Strategic Case for Change, as well as those criteria recommended by the 
Citizens’ Jury. 

 

To support the full business case development, the Trust is working with 
commissioners and system partners on designing further engagement sessions in 
the Forest for 2019, with a focus on services that will be offered in the new 
Community hospital. 

 

5.2.4 Flu Vaccination Target Achieved 

 

The Trust achieved and exceeded its target of delivering the flu vaccination to 76% 
of front line clinical colleagues. The annual flu programme is a significant 
undertaking but is vitally important. The vaccination is the most effective way of 
protecting colleagues from the flu, which in turn protects service delivery and 
service users and carers from contracting what can be a fatal disease. Colleagues 
are also protecting their own family members and anyone else they come into 
contact with from the flu, which is particularly dangerous for the very young, very 
old and those with long term physical health conditions.  

 

5.2.5 Trust Wins New Contract - HPV Vaccination Service for Men 

 

Human papilloma virus (HPV) is the name given to a very common group of 
viruses. There are more than 100 different types of HPV and around 40 that affect 
the genital area. HPV can be caught through any kind of sexual contact with 
another person who already has it.  

 

There are two HPV vaccination programmes in England. One is for girls and one is 
for men who have sex with men (MSM). The Trust’s immunisation team currently 
deliver the HPV vaccine for girls in years eight and nine throughout 
Gloucestershire. From autumn 2019, the team are planning to offer the vaccine to 
boys in year eight.  

 

In January 2019, the Trust was awarded the contract for providing the HPV 
vaccination service for MSM. The vaccination is being offered as part of the 
existing sexual health service for Gloucestershire, which also offers Contraception 
and Sexual health (CASH), Genitourinary Medicine (GUM) and HIV support. 
Service users can receive the vaccination when they attend the Sexual Health 
service clinics at Hope House in Gloucester and Milsom Street in Cheltenham. 

 

5.2.6 Sexual Assault Referral Centre (SARC) Media Coverage 

 

Proactive media coverage has helped raise the profile of the SARC. A full page 
story was published in the Stroud News & Journal, the Wilts & Glos Standard, and 
Gazette series, as well as on their digital platforms. A senior reporter from 
Gloucestershire Live recently received a guided tour of the service, which resulted 
in a story for print and online, describing the process victims of sexual assault or 
rape go through when seeking help and support from the SARC. Additional media 
coverage will follow in March 2019. 

 

 

Page 88



 

 15 

5.2.7 Gloucester City Health Visiting Team Base 

 

The health visitors and school nursing teams previously based at Finlay Hub in 
Gloucester have moved into their new home at 2gether (2g) Trust HQ in Rikenel. 
Renovation works have been completed to accommodate the two teams, who now 
enjoy a brand-new, open-plan office suite on the first floor. Prior to their move, the 
teams were located behind Finlay Community School, on Finlay Road in 
Gloucester. Plans by the school to expand its site to double its pupil intake helped 
prompt the move, but this was not the only factor. 

 

The move, which took place on Friday 25 January 2019, forms part of the current 
GCS and 2g corporate co-location programme. As well as enjoying a more 
spacious, fit-for-purpose base, the teams now have access to a clinical room, 
which they share with the speech and language therapy team. 

 

5.3 Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
 (GHNHSFT)  
 
5.3.1 Care Quality Commission (CQC) Rated: Good  

 

The Care Quality Commission (CQC) has rated Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS 

Foundation Trust (GHNHSFT) as ‘GOOD’ overall following a comprehensive 

inspection of services last autumn. The rating demonstrates the huge strides made 

at Gloucestershire Royal and Cheltenham General Hospitals in delivering high 

quality care to patients. Stroud Maternity Unit had been rated ‘good’ in a previous 

inspection and maintains that status. 

 

The inspection shows that 90.5% of services are now rated ‘good’ or ‘outstanding’ 

compared to 72.5% at the last inspection, reflecting the continuing positive trend of 

improvements in care. No service was rated as inadequate.  

 

In achieving this huge milestone the Trust joins the group of 60% of acute Trusts 

who have achieved this rating or better and completes the ‘hat-trick’ of all three 

NHS healthcare providers in Gloucestershire being rated ‘GOOD’ overall by the 

CQC. Gloucestershire is the only system in England to achieve this. 

 

The Well-led Review also resulted in a ‘good’ rating, demonstrating the quality of 

leadership across all levels of the Trust. Unsurprisingly given the recent financial 

status, the Trust was rated as ‘requires improvement’ for Use of Resources, 

however, the positive progress being made in managing the Trust’s finances was 

also recognised, as demonstrated by the Trust coming out of financial special 

measures in November 2018.  

 

Positively, the CQC inspectors rated our services as safe and we were judged to 

be caring in all areas of service. Areas of outstanding practice featured in the 

report included a culture in which quality improvement and innovation was 

embedded; special praise was given to the quality of care to patients with a 

Learning Disability. Recent changes to service provision between GRH and CGH, 

Page 89



 

 16 

such as the trauma and orthopaedic pilot, was commended, as were this year’s 

winter plans and changes to urgent and unscheduled care services (A&E) at GRH.  

 

Of particular importance is the residual ‘requires improvement’ rating for the 

responsiveness of the Trust’s services, a reflection of the long waiting times 

experienced by some patients. This is an area that is achieving huge focus in the 

Trust, which is confident that the plans to improve waiting times will impact 

significantly. This has been demonstrated most recently with the achievement of 

the two week cancer waiting time standard (for the first time in more than two 

years).  

 

The Trust wants the ‘GOOD’ rating to be a stepping stone on its journey to an 

‘OUSTANDING’ rating at the next inspection. The best organisations are 

continuously striving to improve and the Trust’s focus will remain in achieving this 

outcome for patients in Gloucestershire. 

 

Next steps will include developing an action plan to address the improvement 

opportunities highlighted in the report. The Trust is also working on its five-year 

strategy which will provide an important context for how it achieves an 

‘OUTSTANDING’ rating.  

 

5.3.2 Operational Performance 

 

The Trust continues to perform well relative to many organisations on the A&E 

4hour target. The Trust achieved a ranking of 36 out of 136 Trusts nationally in 

January 2019 and third in the South West Region (89.2% versus 84.4% nationally); 

the Trust achieved 90% for the third consecutive quarter, which makes us one of 

the best performing Trusts in the region.  New models of care have served us well 

and have been instrumental in managing the increases in demand see in recent 

months. However, staff in our A&E departments remain incredibly busy and we 

continue to advise the public to only access A&E if conditions are life threatening 

or serious.   

 

The Trust has achieved the 2 Week Cancer Waiting Time Standard in December 

2018 having registered 94% against the 93% standard; the first time in two years. 

Two week wait performance relies on a multitude of people from the booking 

teams in Central Booking Office, to endoscopy and breast services handling over 

100 referrals a day, and finally to the many clinical teams and other staff on the 

ground in outpatients who are seeing over 2,000 patients a month, often 

overbooking clinics to ensure patients are offered care within the national standard. 

We are prepared for a dip in performance in January 2019 (as a result of patient 

choice over the festive period). However, we are confident this is the start of a new 

trend of delivery of a standard only previously achieved four times in the last three 

years.  

 

A special mention to respiratory and the lung cancer service who are currently 

meeting the 62 day standard for the whole year; before June 2018, the service had 

Page 90



 

 17 

only met the 62 day standards five separate times since 2013 when reporting 

commenced. Green shoots are also showing in colorectal services 62 day 

performance following implementation of a new ‘straight to test’ pathway in the 

summer. Patients who meet the eligibility criteria can be booked directly for a 

colonoscopy investigation and see the consultant with results of this all important 

first test already available; feedback from patients regarding this new approach has 

been very positive. 

  

5.3.3 Care on Wards: The Nursing Assessment and Accreditation System (NAAS) 

 

The NAAS programme is a nationally recognised nursing assessment and 

accreditation system designed to measure the quality of nursing care and is being 

embedded across hospital wards. NAAS supports nurses to understand how they 

deliver care and identify what works well and where further improvements are 

needed. It incorporates the Essence Of Care standards, key clinical indicators, 

Compassionate Care (6Cs) and CQC fundamental standards. It provides structure 

and guidance of expectations for nursing staff, showing them what ‘outstanding 

care’ looks like, as well as helping to identify areas that require support. The Trust 

launched NAAS in 2018 and is looking to build on this and expand into non-ward 

based areas.  Anticipated benefits include increased staff engagement, improved 

recruitment and retention, credible benchmarking as all areas are assessed by the 

same team and most importantly, patients will have a better experience. The 

scheme was pioneered by Salford Royal NHS Trust, one of the first Trusts to be 

rated and maintain an outstanding rating; it has been adopted by several other 

Trusts across the country, but the Trust is the first in the region to adopt it.  

 

5.3.4 Board Changes 

 

In February 2019 the Trust’s longest serving Director, Dr Sean Elyan, stepped 

down from the Board after 14 years of service. Sean has seen numerous changes 

in his time on the Board but particularly so in the last three years. In paying tribute 

to Sean at his last Board meeting, the Chair said he would be remembered for his 

wisdom, his humour and his compassion. Perhaps Sean’s greatest legacy will be 

the Gloucestershire Safety and Quality Improvement Academy which he was 

instrumental in introducing to the Trust and which is credited with very many of the 

improvements noted by the CQC. He will continue to practice as a Consultant 

Oncologist and further contribute to the development of the quality academy.  

 

The Trust would also like to thank Caroline Landon, Chief Operating Officer, for the 

impressive work in turning round A&E performance during her 18 months in the 

Trust. Caroline leaves Gloucestershire to take up the post of Director General for 

Health and Community Services in the States of Jersey.     

 

Positively, the Trust attracted a strong field for both posts and has appointed 

Professor Mark Pietroni as Medical Director. Professor Pietroni’s career path has 

been slightly unconventional with 15 years delivering and managing healthcare in 

Bangladesh and, more recently a five year spell as Director of Public Health for 

Page 91



 

 18 

South Gloucestershire; alongside this latter role Mark has worked for five years as 

a part-time Acute Physician and most recently also as Specialty Director for 

Unscheduled Care here at GHNHSFT.  Professor Pietroni commences his role on 

1 March 2019.  

 

Dr Rachael De Caux has been appointed to the role of Chief Operating Officer. 

Rachael is currently Regional Medical Director for NHS Improvement South and 

brings with her a wealth of operational and quality improvement experience; 

additionally she has experience of both NHS and non-NHS health sectors. An A&E 

consultant by ‘trade’, she was fortunate to be selected to participate in the 

prestigious NHS Leadership Academy programme at Harvard Business School in 

2014, aimed at supporting clinicians to enter senior management positions in the 

NHS. Rachael will commence her role on 1April 2019. 

 

 

6. Recommendations 
 

This report is provided for information and HCOSC Members are invited to note 

the contents. 

 
 

Dr Andrew Seymour    Mary Hutton  
Clinical Chair      Accountable Officer 
NHS Gloucestershire CCG    NHS Gloucestershire CCG 
 
25 February 2019 

Page 92


	Agenda
	5 Quarter 3 Public Health Performance Report
	6 One Gloucestershire ICS Lead Report
	7 Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group Performance Report
	8 Quarter 3 Adult Social Care Performance Report
	9 Director of Adult Social Services Report
	10 Director of Public Health Report
	11 GCCG Clinical Chair/Accountable Officer Report



